
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

November 1, 2022
Tray Payne, Mayor
Shelia Patterson Harris, Mayor Pro Tem, District 2
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Councilwoman, District 1
Mark W. McBrayer, Councilman, District 3
Steve Massengale, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

 

1:30 p.m - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers. Upon convening, the City Council
recesses into Executive Session. 
 

           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Chapter 22 of the Lubbock City Code and Chapter 13 of the Texas Water Code   

 

1. 1. 2. Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light,
for authority to connect remaining portion of its load with Electric Reliability Council
of Texas and for approval of settlement agreement, PUC Docket No. 53529,
proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of Texas

  

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

Following Executive Session, the City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council
Chambers.
 

2. Ceremonial Items   

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 1:30 p.m. on November 1,  2022.  Citizen Comments
provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items. 

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. September 20, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
October 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 1, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes, respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health
Services; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 2, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate from the Texas Homeland Security Grant Division;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor to
accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Dedication Deed and all related
documents, with Amarillo Diamond, LLC, in connection with certain real property located
in Section 6, Block E, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for street, curb, gutter,
sidewalk, drainage right-of-way, public utilities, and other public purposes.

 

5. 4. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No.1 to Contract 14564, with Cartegraph Systems LLC, for professional and
technological services for Asset Management.



 

5. 5. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16927, an agreement with Parkhill, for remaining Construction
Administration Professional Services for the Public Safety Improvements Project, Police
Department Headquarters Facility.

 

5. 6. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 25101489, with ADB Safegate Americas, LLC, for Airfield Lighting Systems at the
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

5. 7. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31069794, with Kenloch Equipment & Supply, Inc., for two street
sweepers for the Streets Department.

 

5. 8. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing and approving the
Parks, Recreation, and Open Spaces Master Plan completed by Halff Associates, Inc., as
recommended by the City of Lubbock Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
accept eGrant Award No. 4015401, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, from the Texas
Homeland Security Grant Division, Office of the Governor.

 

5. 10. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the attorneys
for the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, in the event a
Stipulation and/or Settlement Agreement, whether unanimous or non-unanimous, is
reached in the future, to execute a Stipulation and/or Settlement, whether unanimous or
non-unanimous, within the parameters set forth in the resolution, resolving all issues
related to and regarding the contested case styled Application of City of Lubbock, acting
by and through Lubbock Power & Light, for Authority to Connect the Remaining Portion
of its Load with the Electric Reliability Council of Texas and for Approval of Settlement
Agreement, PUC Docket No. 53529, proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of
Texas.

 

5. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O00154,
for Zone Case 3047-BB, a request of Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Concepts, for a
zone change from Central Business District (CB-3) and Garden Office (GO) to Garden
Office (GO) at 4511 through 4531 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and west of
Quaker Avenue, Vintage Office Park Addition, Tracts C through M.

 

5. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O00156,
for Zone Case 2538-EE, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for South Plains Electric
Cooperative, Inc., for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial
District (C-4) at 7714 and 7702 32nd Street, located north of 32nd Street, between Alcove
Avenue and Yuma Avenue, Alcove Park Addition, Tract A, and on 10.78 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42, Tract C8.

 



 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No.
2022-O00155, for Zone Case 2995-GG, a request of RSDGP, LLC for Endeavour
Enterprises, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District
(C-4) at 7411 Milwaukee Avenue, located north of 76th Street and east of Milwaukee
Avenue, Bacon Crest, Tract E.

 

6. 2. Resolution - Planning (District 1): Consider a resolution approving and granting a
variance from the applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock
Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at 3121 34th Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Frost
Brewhouse, LLC.

 

6. 3. Resolution - Planning (District 2): Consider a resolution approving and granting a
variance from the applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock
Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at 5101 Avenue Q, Suite A, for an alcoholic beverage permit
for Tipsy's Sports Grill and Bar.

 

6. 4. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
a Municipal Services Agreement, with Red Canyon Development, LLC, for the requested
annexation of an area of land generally described as 17.33 acres north of Woodrow Road
and west of Quaker Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits, along with the adjacent
right-of-way.

 



 AI# 11097 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
September 20, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
October 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
September 20, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
October 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
9.20.2022 S EUB 
10.11.2022 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 20, 2022
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 20th of September, 2022,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 11:00 a.m.

11:05 A.M.  CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia;
Council Member Steve Massengale; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca
Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member
Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in
discussions during the meeting in which the board considered the following topics as shown below.

Note: The Electric Utility Board addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session
No quorum, of City Council, was present for all other items.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

1. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public will
have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a translator
will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on the Electric
Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the public
comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board Meeting. The Electric Utility Board shall
follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone who signed
up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for public
comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the floor to
anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same procedures and
guidelines.

*This item was deleted.

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION



2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 11:06 a.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 12:13 p.m. and
adjourned.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss and

deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably related to
the following categories:

 
2. 1. 1. Generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those

costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling.

 
2. 1. 1. 1. Discuss and deliberate generation matters.
 
2. 1. 1. 2. Discuss and the Board will take possible action related to contract concerning generation

and related purchase orders.
 
2. 1. 2. Bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric

Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 2. 1. Discuss and deliberate issues regarding bidding and pricing for purchased power,

generation, and fuel, and Electric Reliability Council of Texas prices and related services
and strategies.

 
2. 1. 3. Effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and

contracts.
 
2. 1. 3. 1. Discuss and deliberate purchased power agreements and fuel matters.  
 
2. 1. 4. Risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage.
 
2. 1. 4. 1. Discuss and deliberate risk management strategies.
 
2. 1. 5. Plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other than

transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the public
power utility is the sole certificated retail provider).

 
2. 1. 5. 1. Discuss and deliberate plans, studies, proposals, and analysis for system improvements,

additions, or sales.
 
2. 1. 6. Customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system

load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.
 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the

Special City Council Meeting 
September 20, 2022 Page 2 of 7



2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the
advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers and hold a
consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the City Council and
the Electric Utility Board under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State
Bar of Texas conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: 

 
2. 2. 1. Legal issues regarding contract(s), including Purchase Orders, herein listed on the agenda.
 
2. 2. 2. Legal advice and counsel regarding matters identified in Section 2.1-2.1.6 of this Agenda.
 
2. 2. 3. Legal advice and counsel regarding purchased power agreements.
 
2. 2. 4. Legal advice and counsel regarding pole attachment matters.
 
2. 2. 5. Legal advice and counsel regarding legal issues related to customer retail choice and the

provider of last resort, including Utilities Code Chapters 39 and 40, and PUC rules
promulgated thereunder.

 
2. 2. 6. Legal advice and counsel regarding Utilities Code Chapter 182.
 
2. 2. 7. Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, for

authority to connect remaining portion of its load with Electric Reliability Council of Texas
and for approval of settlement agreement, PUC Docket No. 53529, proceeding before the
Public Utility Commission of Texas.

 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment of a public officer or employee (Electric Utility Board).
 
11:30 a.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Executive Session, the Electric Utility Board will
reconvene in open session to discuss the items listed below. It is anticipated that the open session will begin at 
11:30 a.m. However, this is an approximation and the Board may begin the open session earlier or later
depending on when the Executive Session is complete.
 
 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will approve the minutes from the Regular Electric Utility Board Meeting of August 16,

2022.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation and discussion of the update/report by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee,

regarding strategic planning, customer service, business center practices, procedures and policies,
customer concerns and complaints, billing system, forms, and procedures, status of transmission and
distribution projects, generation, mutual aid, weather events, outage and restoration efforts, grid
matters, Electric Reliability Council of Texas (“ERCOT”) matters and committee participation,
staffing levels, personnel, regulatory matters, training, cybersecurity, and operational performance
metrics. 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 20, 2022 Page 3 of 7



metrics. 

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding strategic

planning for Lubbock Power & Light during and after its transition to competitive retail choice,
including but not limited to, organizational and resource needs and changes, rate structure
modifications, strategic goals for transmission and distribution service in the competitive market,
occupational, performance, and safety metric goals, and other needs and changes of the electric
utility as it transitions to and operates in the competitive retail market and discussion on survey
handouts regarding same.  Discussion may also include scheduling of a special meeting for
continued strategic planning.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. Presentation and discussion of City Council changes to the Lubbock Power & Light Fiscal Year

2022-2023 budget as recommended by the Electric Utility Board to the City Council of the City of
Lubbock.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. Presentation and discussion of financial and capital statements, financing options, audits, and

financial policies of Lubbock Power & Light relating to debt issuance issues and historical debt
matters, reserve account funding, cost allocation, revenue and expense projections, power cost
recovery factor, customer metering, tariff and billing, service and administrative issues.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding any

updates on the transition to retail customer choice for Lubbock Power & Light’s certificated area.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 7. The Board will consider a resolution approving and establishing the procedures and criteria for

designating the Provider of Last Resort, Voluntary Retail Electric Providers, and Default Retail
Electric Providers, upon the initiation of retail competition in Lubbock Power & Light’s certificated
area, authorizing the initiation of the process, and recommending same to the City Council of the
City of Lubbock.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. Discuss and the Board will take possible minuted action regarding the time, place, and location of

the Electric Utility Board’s Regular Meetings for the months of November and December of 2022. 
Possible dates for discussion are attached, but the discussion may include other dates to the extent
necessary to accommodate schedules.

*This item was deleted.
 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 20, 2022 Page 4 of 7



 
4. CONSENT AGENDA
 
4. 1. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

execute that certain Professional Services Agreement by and between the City of Lubbock, acting
by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and IEM Energy Consultants, LLC, regarding professional
consulting services related to the restoration and start-up of LP&L’s GT-3 unit.  This agreement is
for a not to exceed amount of $19,500, and is for services related to the restoration and start-up of
the GT-3 unit.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 2. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

execute that certain Engagement Agreement by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and
through Lubbock Power & Light, and Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., regarding
Lubbock Power & Light’s comprehensive transmission cost of service case to be filed no later than
May 1, 2023.  The expenses for this engagement are expected to be recovered as rate case expenses.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 3. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

execute that certain Engagement Agreement by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and
through Lubbock Power & Light, and Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., regarding
regulatory filings and compliance before the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 4. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Order, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Elgin Power Solutions, ITB# 7180-22-ELD, for LP&L TTU Distribution
Transformers. This bid, in the amount of $249,900, will support Texas Tech University (TTU)
Central Heating and Cooling Plant II, (CHACP II) chiller project. TTU will install 2-new chiller
units that require 4160V from LP&L, which requires a special order to accommodate.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 5. The Board will consider a resolution rejecting all bids for ITB# 7181-22-ELD, for Yellow House

Equipment. Bids received exceeded engineer’s estimated cost/budget and staff will re-evaluate the
equipment required.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 6. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Order, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Techline Inc., ITB# 7182-22-ELD, for LP&L Residential Street Poles. This bid,
in the amount of $584,168, is necessary to support the continued growth/development of Lubbock,
TX. The poles will be purchased to replenish LP&L stock and current projects needing the poles.

Special City Council Meeting 
September 20, 2022 Page 5 of 7



*This item was deleted.
 
4. 7. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

execute a Public Works Contract by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through
Lubbock Power & Light, and EHV Construction, LLC, RFP# 7185-22-ELD, for McDonald
Substation Construction Services for $849,394. Contractor will be responsible for all construction
activities associated with adding a third transformer to McDonald Substation, as part of moving the
remaining SPP load into ERCOT grid.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 8. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

execute a Contract by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power &
Light, and Deerwood Construction, Inc., RFP# 7186-22-ELD, for LP&L Trenching, Boring &
Excavation Services - Annual Pricing for an estimated annual cost of $1,500,000. Contractor will
help LP&L keep up with numerous underground distribution projects necessary to support the
continued growth and development of Lubbock, Texas.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 9. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Order, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and KBS Electrical Distributors,  Inc., ITB# 7187-22-ELD, for LP&L Ductile Poles.
This bid, in the amount of $256,755, will be used in certain areas of overhead feeder projects related
to shifting the remaining SPP load to the ERCOT grid. These feeders include Co-Op, Vicksburg,
and McDonald, which are slated to begin construction in fourth quarter 2022/first quarter 2023.

*This item was deleted.
 

12:13 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The September 20, 2022 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 1st
day of November, 2022.

 
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 20, 2022 Page 6 of 7



*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
September 20, 2022 Page 7 of 7



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

October 11, 2022
12:30 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 11th of October, 2022, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 12:30 p.m.

12:30 P.M.  CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Steve Massengale; Council
Member Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett
Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

Council Member Latrelle Joy exited the meeting at 2:01 p.m.

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1; 3.1-3.2; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.1-6.27; and 7.1-7.2.
Item No. 7.1 was postponed to October 25, 2022.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 12:31 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 1:34 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:06 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. Approximately 14 acres out of BLK O, Sec 3, AB 24, Park TR North of Parkway Drive

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

1. 2. 1. Approximately 14 acres out of BLK O, Sec 3, AB 24, Park TR North of Parkway Drive

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to



1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation, Lake Alan
Henry Board of Appeals, Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers,
and the Planning and Zoning Commission.

  

 
 
 
Following the Executive Session, the City Council reconvened in City Council Chambers for a
Work Session regarding items for presentation and discussion on such issues that may require
in-depth consideration by the City Council.

City Council reconvened at 1:34 p.m.
 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. Parks Master Plan

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Kalee Robinson, park programming coordinator, introduced
the item, gave comments, and answered questions from City Council.

Aaron Tuley, with Halff Associates, gave a presentation on the Parks Master Plan and answered
questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: the five types of assessments used in
the development of the Parks Master Plan, which included demand-based, standards-based,
resource-based, park conditions, and operations-based assessments; and Chapters one through
six of the Parks Master Plan, which include, Chapter 1, "Introduction"; Chapter 2, "Lubbock's
Parks"; Chapter 3, "Sports and Athletic Facilities"; Chapter 4, "Indoor Recreation and
Aquatics"; Chapter 5, "Lubbock's Lakes"; and Chapter 6, "Implementation".

Colby VanGundy, director of parks and recreation, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.

 
2:00 p.m. - Regular Session

City Council concluded Work Session and began Regular Session at 2:04 p.m.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Invocation

Kasey Davis, firefighter and chaplain with Lubbock Fire Rescue, led the invocation.
 
3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia
Patterson Harris.

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 2 of 9



 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 2:06 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - Any citizen wishing to appear in person before a regular meeting of

the City Council, regarding any matter posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall
complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on October 11,
2022.  Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and
express a position on agenda items. Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a
question will be referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

No one appeared to speak.
 
5. Minutes
 
5. 1. August 16, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board

September 13, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve the August 16, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric
Utility Board minutes; and the September 13, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Latrelle Joy (AWAY) 

 
6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Mark W. McBrayer, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve items 6.1-6.27. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Latrelle Joy (AWAY) 

 
6. 1. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2022-R0411 expressing intent to finance expenditures to

be incurred for various capital projects and equipment approved by the City Council in the FY
2022-23 Budget and Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of
obligations that will be issued after the expenditure of funds to pay costs of such projects and
equipment.

  

 
6. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0141, abandoning and

closing a portion of an underground utility easement, located within Lot 12, Westac Addition,
Lubbock County, Texas.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 3 of 9



 
6. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2022-R0412 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Amendment to a Street Use License dated February 9, 2021, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Mike Irish, and located at 1204 Avenue R.

  

 
6. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Stormwater Compliance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0142, amending

Chapter 22, Utilities, Article 22.11, Stormwater Regulations of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Lubbock, Texas, with regard to stormwater plan review fees; providing a savings clause;
providing a penalty; and providing for publication.

  

 
6. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Traffic Operations: Ordinance No. 2022-O0153, amending Section

20.05.102 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, with regard to the establishment of
speed limits.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.
David Bragg, city traffic engineer, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 6. Resolution - Solid Waste: Resolution No. 2022-R0413 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 16673, with Space Savers, Inc., for Alternate Daily Cover, for the West Texas
Regional Disposal Facility.

  

 
6. 7. Resolution - Health Benefits: Resolution No. 2022-R0414 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 16869, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Davis Vision,
to provide a voluntary vision plan for full-time employees.

  

 
6. 8. Resolution - Health Benefits: Resolution No. 2022-R0415 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment 2 to Contract 13582, by and between the City of Lubbock and Optum Financial, to
provide Flexible Spending Account and Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA)
administrative services.

  

 
6. 9. Resolution - Health Benefits: Resolution No. 2022-R0416 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 16694, by and between the City of Lubbock and BlueCross BlueShield of Texas
(BCBSTX), to provide medical administrative services only (ASO), dental administration,
pharmacy benefit management (PBM), Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act
(COBRA) administration, and Medicare Navigator services.

  

 
6. 10. Resolution - Municipal Court: Resolution No. 2022-R0417 authorizing the Mayor to execute

the renewal of the Interlocal Agreement for the Specialized Treatment and Rehabilitation
(STAR), a joint program between Lubbock County, Texas, the Lubbock Independent School
District and the City of Lubbock.

  

 
6. 11. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0418 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 16700, with Bill Williams Tire, for the purchase of tires and tire repair service, for City
of Lubbock vehicles and equipment.

  

 
6. 12. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0419 authorizing the Mayor to execute   

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 4 of 9



6. 12. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0419 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31069080, with C & C Manufacturing, for the purchase of a 2023 Aljon Series
600 Landfill Compactor, for the Solid Waste Landfill.

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0420 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31069158, with Kann Manufacturing, for the purchase of nine Commercial
Side-Loader Trash Truck Bodies, for the Solid Waste Residential Collection Department.

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0421 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31069161, with Chastang Enterprises Inc., for the purchase of three 2023
Autocar DC-64 Cab & Chassis, for the Solid Waste Residential Collection Department. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Resolution No. 2022-R0422 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 10025760 and related documents, with Eaton Corporation, for
Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) battery replacement, labor, related equipment, fees, and
expenses.

  

 
6. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - City Manager: Ordinance No. 2022-O0143, adding Section

22.01.004 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, related to over or under billing for
utility services, other than electric or gas utilities; and adding Section 22.01.005 related to the
proration of bills.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 17. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0423 authorizing the Mayor to approve the

New Hope Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation's accepting a tax-exempt loan and
execution of a note in evidence thereof, to obtain funds on behalf of the Red Raider Facilities
Foundation, to finance Jones Stadium and Related Facilities Improvement and Expansion, and
other matters in connection therewith.

  

 
6. 18. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0424 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Tri-Party Agreement, Contract 16892 by and between the City of Lubbock, the Lubbock
Economic Development Alliance, Inc. (LEDA) and WL Plastics Corporation to cause the
relocation of utility easements and associated infrastructure in support of the recently announced
expansion of WL Plastics Corporation operations at the Lubbock Rail Port.

  

 
6. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0146, for Zone Case

2072-B, for Joshua and Ni Wang Clark, for a zone change from Family Apartment District
(A-1) Specific Use for Apartments with Reduced Parking to Family Apartment District (A-1)
at 2123 15th Street, located south of 15th Street and east of Avenue V, Overton Addition, Block
52, Lot 12.

  

 
6. 20. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0144, for Zone Case

809-A, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Shanghai Development Company, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) and Reduced
Setbacks Single-Family District (R-1A) generally located north of Drake Street and east of
University Avenue, on 64.03 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 11.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 5 of 9



 
6. 21. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0145, for Zone Case

1120-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for 5G Crownpoint, LLC, for a zone change from
Family Apartment District (A-1) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) at 3701 Clovis Road,
located south of Clovis Road and west of North Loop 289, on 2.81 acres of proposed Lot 5-A-1,
Clovis Road Addition.

  

 
6. 22. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0147, for Zone Case

3470, a request of Rise Broadband for Gerald and Lorraine Schulte, for a Specific Use for
Antennas, Towers and Alternative Tower Structures on property zoned Transitional (T) at 5309
East Erskine Street, located north of East Erskine Street and west of North Fiddlewood Ave, on
0.50 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 26.

  

 
6. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Ordinance No. 2022-O0148, for Zone Case

1424-A, a request of Chloe Williams for Brad and Stephen Linneman, for a zone change from
Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Commercial District (C-4) at 3804 21st Street, Suite C,
located north of 21st Street and east of Miami Avenue, Reeder Addition, Block 2, Lot 5.

  

 
6. 24. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2022-O0152, for Zone Case

1131-P, a request of JCW Development, LLC for various applicants, for a Specific Use for
Blood Banks & Blood Plasma Centers on property zoned General Retail District (C-3) at 5047
Indiana Avenue, located south of 50th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, Monterey Center
Addition, Tract C.

  

 
6. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0149, for Zone Case

3468, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for DWTP, LLC, for a zone change from
Transition District (T) to Reduced Setbacks Single-Family District (R-1A), Two-Family District
(R-2), High-Density Apartment District (A-2), Local Retail District (C-2) and General Retail
District (C-3) generally located south of 114th Street and west of Milwaukee Avenue, on 160.5
acres of uplatted land out of Block AK, Section 19.

  

 
6. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0150, for Zone Case

3469, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Loop 88, LLC, for a zone change from
Transition (T), Industrial Park (IDP) and Local Retail District (C-2) to Reduced Setback
Single-Family District (R-1A) generally located south of 114th Street and east of Milwaukee
Avenue, on 93.7 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20.

  

 
6. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2022-O0151, for Zone Case

2538-DD, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for 806 Land Group, LLC, for a zone change
from Single-Family District (R-1) and Two Family District (R-2) to General Retail District
(C-3) generally located south of 4th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 15.65 acres of
unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10.

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Electric Utility Board.   

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 6 of 9



7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Electric Utility Board.

This item was postponed.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to postpone this item to the October 25, 2022 Regular City Council
Meeting. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Latrelle Joy (AWAY) 

 
7. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Board, Central

Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors,
Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation, Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory
Committee, Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals, Libraries Board, Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency Communication District Board
of Managers, Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors, Model
Codes & Construction Advisory Board, Museum & Arts Standing Sub-Committee, Park and
Recreation Board and the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of
Directors: Appointment of Gabe Vitela to replace Kade Wilcox.

Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation: Reappointment of Carolyn
Thompson.

Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory Committee: Appointment of Chase Head and Brian
Melakian to replace Kim Davis and Juan Lopez.

Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals: Appointment of Garrett Haley to replace Kristyn
Sorenson.

Libraries Board: Appointment of Annie Doyle to replace Kelly Davila.

Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Board of Directors: Appointment of Sarah
Bevers, Melissa Collier, and Blake Womble to replace Matthew Bumstead, SuzAnn Kirby, and
Barry Orr.

Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers: Reappointment of
Nathan White.

Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors: Appointment of
Sarah Bevers, Melissa Collier, and Blake Womble to replace Matthew Bumstead, SuzAnn
Kirby, and Barry Orr.

Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board: Appointment of Blake Collins to replace Jay
Flewharty; Parker Hutchens, to replace David Miller; Steven Scruggs, to replace Robert Nanz;
Alexander Dickey, to replace Carl Wampler; and Wendell Burris, to replace Jonathon Willey. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 7 of 9



Museum & Arts Standing Sub-Committee: Appointment of Cari Sorrell to replace Patricia
Maines.

Park and Recreation Board: Appointment of Michael Henson to replace Johnathon Graves.

Planning & Zoning Commission: Reappointment of James Bell and Tanner Noble.
  

Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson, to appoint and reappoint the aforementioned citizens to the Central
Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors,
Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation, Keep Lubbock Beautiful
Advisory Committee, Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals, Libraries Board, Lubbock
Economic Development Alliance Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency
Communications District Board of Managers, Market Lubbock Economic Development
Corporation, Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board, Museum & Arts Standing
Sub-Committee, Park and Recreation Board, and the Planning & Zoning Commission.
 
Vote: 6-0 Motion carried
 
Other: Council Member Latrelle Joy (AWAY)

Airport Board: Appointments to the Airport Board were postponed to the October 25, 2022
Regular City Council Meeting. 

Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to postpone the consideration of appointments to the Airport Board to the
October 25, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting.

Vote: 6-0 Motion carried

Other: Council Member Latrelle Joy (AWAY)
 

2:24 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The October 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
1st  day of November, 2022.

  
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 8 of 9



___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2022 Page 9 of 9



 AI# 11100 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 1,
amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes, respecting the Grant Fund to accept and
appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
Accept and appropriate $785,938 from the Texas Department of State Health Services for the STD and
HIV Disease Prevention Services Program.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 1 







 AI# 11106 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 2,
amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund to accept and
appropriate from the Texas Homeland Security Grant Division; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

Item Summary
Accept and appropriate $68,516.33 from the Texas Homeland Security Grant Division for the Hazmat
Sustainment Program.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 2 







 AI# 11098 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Dedication Deed and all related documents, with Amarillo
Diamond, LLC, in connection with certain real property located in Section 6, Block E, Lubbock County,
Texas, to be utilized for street, curb, gutter, sidewalk, drainage right-of-way, public utilities, and other
public purposes.

Item Summary
Amarillo Diamond LLC is dedicating a 19,499 square-foot tract of land for the purpose of unpaved road
improvements located at the north half of East 74th Street from Magnolia Avenue to Oak Avenue. 
Please refer to the dedication deed, exhibit, and map for additional information.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Dedication Deed 
Dedication Deed - Amarillo Diamond, LLC 
Exhibit A - Section 6, Block E 
Map - Section 6, Block E 













3C

3

3

1
1

3

3D3B3A

5
As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Public Use Dedication Deed
Located in Section 6, Block E

0 100 200 300 400
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

O
A

K
 A

V
E

TRIG
G HEIG

HTS

Public Use Deed
19,499 sq ft

K
IN

G
 A

V
E

E 74TH ST

TRIG
G HEIG

HTS

McLEOD

SE LOOP 289

NELSON

ELECTRIC

TJ

DEVELOPMENT

McLEOD

CMR

IN
DUSTRIA

L

PARK
PRADO

WRIG
HT

84

O
A

K
 A

V
E

IV
O

RY
 A

V
E

M
A

RT
IN

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R 
BL

V
D

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A
 A

V
E

E 74TH ST



 AI# 11086 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No.1 to
Contract 14564, with Cartegraph Systems LLC, for professional and technological services for Asset
Management.

Item Summary
The purpose of this amendment is to maintain the City’s current Asset Management System, and to
expand the system to include Fleet. Cartegraph is currently used by multiple City departments to track
assets, work orders, labor, and more.
 
This agreement is for FY 2022-23, FY 2023-24, and FY 2024-25. The first year (FY 2022-23) the
agreement is for $432,500, of which $132,500 will be funded by Capital Improvements Project 8614,
Asset Management, and the remainder will be covered by the Information Technology Operating
Budget. The second and third year (FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25) will be covered entirely in the
Information Technology Operating Budget.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 14564, is in the amount of $432,500 and is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 8614, Asset Management, and the Information Technology Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment_No.1_Contract_14564 (rescan( 
Original Contract 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 





















































































































































































































































































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

November 1, 2022

Capital Project Number: 8614
Capital Project Name: Asset Management

Capital Project Number: Operations
Capital Project Name: Information Technology

Budget
Encumbered/Expended 8614 IT Cost Center Total

City of Lubbock staff time  $11,103  $11,103 
HDR Contract No 13408  199,950  199,950 
HDR Amendment No. 1  158,678  158,678 
Contract No. 14564 - Enterprise Asset Management System  1,170,097  1,170,097 
Change Order 1 to Contract 14564  16,983  16,983 

Agenda Item November 1, 2022
Amendment 1 with Contract 14564 with Cartegraph  132,500  300,000  432,500 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,689,311  300,000  1,989,311 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Additional Seats and Future Integrations  54,294  -  54,294 

Remaining Appropriation  50,689  -  50,689 

Total Appropriation  $1,740,000  $300,000  $2,040,000 







 AI# 11103 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16927, an agreement with Parkhill, for remaining Construction Administration Professional Services for
the Public Safety Improvements Project, Police Department Headquarters Facility.

Item Summary
This $595,107.96 contract includes Construction Administration (CA) Professional Services related to
the Police Headquarters Facility located at 1205 15th Street, Lubbock, Texas. The agreement includes
remaining CA work in the amount of $322,612.96, which includes $11,321.98 to be used for
reimbursable expenses.  It will include additional professional services for the Art and Memorial
design/build package located inside and outside the building, in the amount of $272,495.00.

The term is for 275 consecutive days or the completion of the construction, whichever occurs last.

Fiscal Impact
$595,107.96 for this contract is funded in Capital Improvement Project No. 92551, Public Safety
Improvements Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Darren Densford, City Architect

Attachments
Resolution Contract 16927 
Contract 16927 Parkhill 
92551 Budget Summary 













































Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Headquarters East Substation North Substation South Substation Forensics / Property Municipal Courts Total
92551.10000 92551.20000 92551.30000 92551.40000 92551.50000 92551.60000

 Encumbered/Expended
Advertising 1,359                       1,449                       -                           -                           -                                  197                          3,005                          
Acquisition/Title Co. 16,332                     670                          423,717                   -                           -                                  -                           440,719                      
Temporary Construction -                           7,650                       -                           -                           394                                 -                           8,044                          
Archaeology Survey -                           975                          -                           -                           910                                 -                           1,885                          
Miscellaneous Charges -                           1,373                       132                          1,605                       726                                 1,496                       5,331                          
MWM Contract #13951 3,360                       685,820                   315,919                   299,114                   -                                  -                           1,304,213                   
PSC Contract #14153 1,489,676                -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           1,489,676                   
Hugo Reed - Survey 3,500                       -                           -                           -                           7,500                              7,500                       18,500                        
Phase I Assessment 3,000                       -                           -                           -                           2,150                              -                           5,150                          
Geotechnical Report -                           -                           -                           -                           11,535                            -                           11,535                        
FFA Contract #14079 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           -                              
TEI Contract #14163 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           -                              
RSA Contract #14190 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  619,380                   619,380                      
PSC Contract #14153 Amendment 1 66,500                     -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           66,500                        
FF&E 70,568                     -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           70,568                        
Lee Lewis Contract #14224 Amendment 1 -                           5,911,358                5,741,888                6,255,031                -                                  -                           17,908,277                 
RSA Contract #14190 Amendment 1 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  16,250                     16,250                        
Lee Lewis Contract #15202 Amendment #1 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  4,415,200                4,415,200                   
Officewise Contract #15668 FF&E -                           241,741                   241,741                   241,741                   -                                  -                           725,224                      
PD Substation FF&E State Coop Contract -                           23,451                     10,555                     17,003                     -                                  -                           51,010                        
Lee Lewis Contract #15789 15,800,000              -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           15,800,000                 
Utility Tie-In 56,766                     -                           -                           24,012                     -                                  21,693                     102,471                      
Testing Lab Services -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  49,000                     49,000                        
Technology & Communications 317,378                   77,447                     77,679                     77,918                     -                                  13,298                     563,720                      
Relocation Services -                           3,626                       3,627                       3,626                       -                                  6,579                       17,458                        
Officewise Contract #15668 FF&E Amendment #1 -                           4,042                       4,042                       4,042                       -                                  -                           12,125                        
MWM Contract #15857 -                           27,500                     21,946                     27,726                     -                                  -                           77,172                        
Officewise FF&E State Coop Contract -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  249,070                   249,070                      
RSA Contract #14190 Amendment 2 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  4,023                       4,023                          
Parkhill Contract #16308 -                           -                           -                           -                           599,100                          -                           599,100                      
RSA Contract #16718 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  18,750                     18,750                        
Chapman Harvey Building Envelope Services -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  9,000                       9,000                          
Lee Lewis Contract #14224 Amendment 2 -                           115,359                   96,457                     95,896                     -                                  -                           307,712                      
Lee Lewis Contract #15202 Amendment #2 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  158,838                   158,838                      
RSA Contract #14190 Amendment 3 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                  (8,279)                      (8,279)                         
FF&E Ergoflex Systems, Inc. PO 10025811 293,542                   -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           293,542                      
FF&E Officewise PO 10025812 770,263                   -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           770,263                      
FF&E 1st Class Solutions PO 10025814 464,022                   -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           464,022                      

 Agenda Items November 01, 2022
Parkhill Contract #16927 595,108                   -                           -                           -                           -                                  -                           595,108                      

19,951,375              7,102,461                6,937,702                7,047,715                622,315                          5,581,995                47,243,562                 

  Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Communications, Technology, Move, FFE, etc. 8,638,438                

8,638,438                
55,882,000$            Total Appropriation

  Encumbered/Expended To Date

92551
Public Safety Improvements Project

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project Cost Detail

October 25, 2022

  Remaining Appropriation



 AI# 11110 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
25101489, with ADB Safegate Americas, LLC, for Airfield Lighting Systems at the Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
ADB Safegate Americas, LLC, specializes in the design and manufacture of transportation and
infrastructure lighting solutions, and they offer systems using LED technologies that have made dramatic
improvements in energy efficiency and reliability. ADB Safegate Americas, LLC, products installed at
the airport are exclusive to ADB Safegate Americas, LLC, and are not interchangeable with parts from
other manufacturers.

The cost of 22 airfield replacement Location and Directional Lighted Signs is $68,867.55. A sole source
procurement is exempt from competitive bidding pursuant to Texas Local Government Code 252.022
(a)(7)(A).

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend purchasing airfield Location and Directional
Lighted Signs at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport (LPSIA) from ADB Safegate
Americas, LLC from Columbus, Ohio.

Fiscal Impact
This purchase is funded in the FY 2022-23 LPSIA Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Assistant City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution ADB Safegate 
Purchase Order ADB Safegate 



















 AI# 11101 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31069794, with Kenloch Equipment & Supply, Inc., for two street sweepers for the Streets Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31069794 is for 2 Elgin Eagle Broom street sweepers with Dual Side Brooms, from
Kenloch Equipment & Supply Inc., from Pasadena, Texas. These new sweepers will replace a 2010
street sweeper and a 2011 street sweeper that have exceeded their useful lives.
 
Each street sweeper has a Unit Cost of $352,635, and the total cost of both street sweepers is $705,270.
 
This purchase is made in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 093021-ELG. Sourcewell is a cooperative
purchasing program that manages the solicitation requirements and offers an established network of
awarded contracts that have been competitively bid. Cooperative purchasing is authorized in Chapter
271 of the Local Government Code and allows a local government to participate in a cooperative
purchasing program. Sourcewell purchases conform to the requirements of Texas competitive bid
statues.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31069794 for $705,270 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92782.9220.40000,
Storm Water Vehicle Replacement FY 2022-23.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 31069794 
Budget Detail 

















Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

-$                               

Agenda Item November 01, 2022
705,270                       

Encumbered/Expended To Date 705,270                       

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Vehicles and Equipment 29,621                         

Remaining Appropriation 29,621                         

Total Appropriation 734,891$                     

Two (2) Elgin Eagle Street Sweepers (6512)

City of Lubbock, TX
Budget Summary
November 1, 2022

92782
Storm Water Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 22-23



 AI# 11083 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing and approving the Parks,
Recreation, and Open Spaces Master Plan completed by Halff Associates, Inc., as recommended by the
City of Lubbock Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.

Item Summary
The FY 2020 budget appropriated funding for the Parks, Recreation, and Open Spaces Master Plan. On
April 13, 2021, the City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with Halff Associates,
Inc., for the creation of the Parks, Recreation, and Open Spaces Master Plan. 

The master plan is a comprehensive, long-range strategy for the creation, optimization, and maintenance
of a community’s assets. It doesn’t focus on one particular park, but instead offers a bird’s-eye view of a
community’s parks and recreation landscape, both today and beyond. It examines the parks and
recreation assets’ ability to meet the needs of the community, and outlines steps for closing the gap
between current capabilities and those needs. The vision of this plan is to help the Parks and Recreation
Department provide a high-quality park system that has achieved a balance between preserving
ecological function, while enhancing the City’s built environment with beautiful urban green spaces that
enrich the lives of its citizens and visitors alike.

In an effort to gather as much citizen input as possible, the Parks and Recreation Department, along with
the assistance of Halff and Associates, Inc., organized and facilitated numerous open house and
community meetings. In addition, a website was constructed specifically for the Master Plan, which
provided citizens with information regarding the Plan, as well as six separate online surveys which were
available in both English and Spanish. Paper versions were also available. A total of 5,519 surveys were
completed over the course of 2 months. These surveys covered the topics of Community Needs,
Planning and Development, Aquatics, Indoor Recreation, Sports and Athletics, and Golf.

This citizen-driven plan was approved by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board on Monday,
October 24, 2022. The plan will enhance the Department’s chances of being awarded grants through the
Texas Parks and Wildlife Department, as well as allowing the Department to begin its journey toward
the National Recreation and Park Association’s Commission for Accreditation of Park and Recreation
Agencies (CAPRA).

A copy of the full-version of the Master Plan document is available in the City Secretary’s Office. A
digital version of the Executive Summary, as well as the full-version of the Master Plan, is available on
the Parks and Recreation website at www.playlubbock.com.

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending

http://www.playlubbock.com


Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Colby VanGundy, Director of Parks and Recreation
City of Lubbock Parks and Recreation Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution 
Park Board Minutes - 10/24/22 





 

 
 Minutes 

Parks and Recreation Board Meeting 

City of Lubbock Parks and Recreation 

October 24, 2022 

 

Park Board Members Present:  
Chris Lonngren, Brent Hodges, Daniel Bunye, Margarita Olivarez, Bil Anderson, William Pasewark 

 

Park Board Members Absent: Jeff Lansdell, Gwen Titus 

 

Staff Present: 

Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager 

Colby VanGundy, Parks and Recreation Director 

Ben Perry, Parks and Recreation Assistant Director  

Sandra Vasquez, Management Assistant 

Kalee Robinson, Park Programming Coordinator 

Savannah Hogan, Administrative Assistant 

 

Item 1: Call to Order: 

 At 12:01 p.m., Chris Lonngren, called the meeting to order  

 

Item 2: Citizen Comments - None 

 

Item 3: Approval of Minutes: 

 Daniel Bunye made a motion to approve the minutes of the September 26, 2022 regular meeting with one correction 

 Margarita Olivarez seconded the motion 

 Unanimous vote to pass with one correction  

 

5. Work Session: 

 

Item 5.1 Presentation - Adopt A Park Update – Colby VanGundy, Parks and Recreation Director 
 Brief overview of four adopt a park applications 

 Daniel Bunye made a motion for approval 

 Margarita Olivarez seconded the motion 

 Unanimous vote to pass 

 

4. Action Items: 

 

Item 4.1 Park Board approval of the Parks, Recreation and Open Spaces Master Plan - Colby VanGundy, Parks and 

Recreation Director 
 Discussed Master Plan timeline 

 Going to City Council on November 1, 2022 for consideration 

 Discussed how the Executive Summary will help with goal of plan 

 Resources, grants, and consultants were also discussed  

 Brent Hodges made a motion to pass 

 Bil Anderson seconded the motion 

 Unanimous vote to pass  

 

Adjourn: 

With no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 12:51 p.m.  

 

Attest, 

Sandra Vasquez, Management Assistant      Chris Lonngren, Chair 



 AI# 11090 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept eGrant
Award No. 4015401, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, from the Texas Homeland Security Grant
Division, Office of the Governor.

Item Summary
The Texas Homeland Security Grants Division (HSGD) of the Governor’s Office supports local and
regional efforts to prevent terrorism and other catastrophic events, and to prepare for the threats and
hazards that pose the greatest risk to the security of Texas citizens.  The purpose is to support state,
tribal, and local preparedness activities that address high-priority preparedness gaps across all core
capabilities where a connection to terrorism exists.

In alignment with this directive, an eGrant application was submitted for funds to replace a hand held
detector identifying solid and liquid chemicals, with a new generation system for the Hazmat Team.  The
State of Texas approved the submission and now awaits formal acknowledgment of acceptance of award
for release of funds.  
 

Fiscal Impact
The Texas HSGD eGrant Award is $68,516.33.  No match is required.    

Staff/Board Recommending
Anthony Fogerson, Fire Chief 

Attachments
Resolution - eGrant Award 
Award Notification 









 AI# 11095 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the attorneys for the City of
Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, in the event a Stipulation and/or Settlement
Agreement, whether unanimous or non-unanimous, is reached in the future, to execute a Stipulation
and/or Settlement, whether unanimous or non-unanimous, within the parameters set forth in the
resolution, resolving all issues related to and regarding the contested case styled Application of City of
Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, for Authority to Connect the Remaining
Portion of its Load with the Electric Reliability Council of Texas and for Approval of Settlement
Agreement, PUC Docket No. 53529, proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

Item Summary
Currently, approximately 30% of the City of Lubbock and its municipally owned electric utility,
Lubbock Power & Light (“LP&L”) is served with wholesale power delivered through the Southwest
Power Pool Regional Transmission Organization (“SPP”).  The other 70% of LP&L’s load has been
integrated into the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (“ERCOT”).

On or about May 27, 2021, the Electric Utility Board, by resolution No. EUB 2021-R0038, determined
that the customers of LP&L would be best served by a migration of LP&L’s remaining load (the
“Remaining Load”) from SPP to ERCOT and authorized the Director of Electric Utilities to execute or
cause to be executed, any and all pleadings and other filings to cause the migration of the Remaining
Load from SPP to ERCOT.  Further, on or about May 27, 2021, the Electric Utility Board and the City
Council of the City of Lubbock, by resolutions No. EUB 2021-R0039 and 2021-R0201, respectively,
approved that certain Settlement Agreement (“Settlement Agreement”) by and between Southwestern
Public Service Company and LP&L, which stated that the Settlement Agreement would not become
effective unless and until it is approved by the Public Utility Commission of Texas (“PUC”), and the
parties agreed to request approval of the Settlement Agreement as part of the migration of the
Remaining Load to ERCOT.

On April 27, 2022, LP&L filed its Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, for Authority to Connect the Remaining Portion of its Load with the Electric Reliability
Council of Texas and for approval of Settlement Agreement with the PUC to address both the Remaining
Load and the Settlement Agreement, which is proceeding under PUC Docket No. 53529 (the “PUC
Proceeding”).

Multiple parties have intervened in the PUC Proceeding, including Southwestern Public Service, the
Office of Public Utility Counsel, Texas Industrial Energy Consumers, the Electric Reliability Council of
Texas, Golden Spread Electric Cooperative, Inc., and the Alliance for Retail Markets (collectively,
“Intervenors”). The PUC Staff is also participating in the PUC Proceeding. Currently, settlement
negotiations are ongoing between Intervenors, LP&L, and PUC Staff.

This resolution authorizes LP&L’s outside counsel to enter into a Stipulation and/or Settlement
Agreement regarding this matter, whether unanimous or non-unanimous, so long as certain conditions



Agreement regarding this matter, whether unanimous or non-unanimous, so long as certain conditions
are met.  Those conditions are as follows: 

The Stipulation and/or Settlement permits the Remaining Load to migrate to ERCOT no later than
June 15, 2023, and no further payments or hold harmless provisions are required of LP&L for this
transition.

1.

The Stipulation and/or Settlement states that the migration of the Remaining Load into ERCOT is
in the public interest.

2.

The Stipulation and/or Settlement does not change, alter, or otherwise modify the Settlement
Agreement by and between Southwestern Public Service Company and LP&L, dated May 27, 2021.

3.

The Stipulation and/or Settlement states that the Settlement Agreement by and between
Southwestern Public Service Company and LP&L dated May 27, 2021, is reasonable and in the
public interest.

4.

The Stipulation and/or Settlement is approved in substance by the Director of Electric Utilities and
in form by the General Counsel of LP&L.

5.

Fiscal Impact
In anticipation of the full integration to ERCOT, LP&L and SPS agreed to terminate the Purchased
Power Agreement (PPA) and the Transmission Letter Agreement. Under the terms of the Settlement
Agreement, LP&L intends to pay a lump sum, totaling $77.5 million in accordance with the agreement,
to SPS as negotiated compensation for power and transmission-related shifted costs under the PPA. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Ivy, Director of Electric Utilities 

Attachments
City Council Resolution - Remaining Load Parameters 
EUB Resolution - Remaining Load Parameters 















 AI# 11070 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O00154, for Zone Case
3047-BB, a request of Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Concepts, for a zone change from Central
Business District (CB-3) and Garden Office (GO) to Garden Office (GO) at 4511 through 4531 114th
Street, located south of 114th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, Vintage Office Park Addition, Tracts C
through M.

Item Summary
On October 25, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3047-BB 
Staff Report 3047-BB 
Documentation 3047-BB 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3047-BB 
City Council Meeting October 25, 2022 

Applicant Seventeen Services LLC 

Property Owner Edge Concepts 

Council District 4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: The northern subject properties were annexed into city limits 

and zoned Transition (T).
• June 23, 2005, Ordinance No. 2005-O0067: The remaining southern subject properties were annexed into 

city limits and zoned T.
• August 8, 2005, Zone Case 3047, Ordinance No. 2005-O00092: The southwest portion of the subject 

properties was rezoned from T to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A).
• August 8, 2005, Zone Case 3047, Ordinance No. 2005-O00092: The northeast portion of the subject 

properties was rezoned from T to Central Business District, General (CB-3).
• July 9, 2019, Zone Case 3381, Ordinance No. 2019-O0079: The southwest portion of the subject 

properties was rezoned from R-1A to Garden Office District (GO).
• October 6, 2022, Zone Case 3047-BB: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from Central Business District 3 (CB-3) and Garden Office District (GO) to Garden Office 
District (GO) by a vote of 9-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 14
• Received In Favor: 2
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
On December 12, 2014, the subject properties were platted as Vintage Office Park Addition, Tracts C through M 
and are in the Vintage Township Design District. At this time, the subject properties remain vacant with Tract C 
being used as additional parking for the area. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The subject properties are surrounded by vacant land, zoned Local Retail District (C-2) to the north; a shopping 
center and grocery store to the east, zoned General Retail District (C-3); to the south is commercial property, 
zoned Central Business District (CB-3); and to the west is a Stormwater Drainage and Impoundment Easement, 
zoned Single Family District (R-1). 

Item Summary 
The subject properties are addressed as 4511 through 4531 114th Street, located south of 114th street and west 
of Quaker Avenue. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Central Business District, General (CB-3) 
within the Vintage Design District and Garden Office District (GO) to Garden Office District (GO). 

Current zoning: Central Business District 3 (CB-3) and Garden Office District (GO) 

Requested zoning: Garden Office District (GO) 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current CB-3 zoning is “…to provide realistic, modern standards for new development and 
encourage renewal and revitalization of existing development.” 

The intent of the current and proposed GO zoning is “…to provide for quality garden office development through 
proper planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure 
the compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 
commercial uses. When proposed garden office development is adjacent to any residentially zoned property, 
design standards and site planning shall provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent residential zoning 
districts.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is south of 114th Street, which is designated as a Minor Arterial and west of Quaker Avenue, which is 
designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets are continuous routes 
whose function is to serve high volumes needs of local traffic and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Residential Low Density. Although the proposed zone change 
to GO would not be consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, GO is appropriate in this location, as it provides a 
buffer between commercial districts and residential districts. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located between 
commercial property and residential property, which is an appropriate location for GO. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the uses allowed in the GO district. Additional infrastructure improvements will be 
necessary, as the property does not have road access at this time. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Notification Replies

Victor Escamilla 
Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department 

Staff Contacts 
Gregory Hernandez 
Planner 
Planning Department 
806-775-3147
GHernandez@mylubbock.us

806-775-2109
VEscamilla@mylubbock.us

mailto:VEscamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3047-BB 

 

Allowable Uses:   Garden Office (GO) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has no point of access, but is along 114th Street and 

Quaker Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Quaker Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 120 feet, six-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 120 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

114th Street,  
Minor Arterial, Not 

Completed  

R.O.W. 120 feet, two-lane, 
divided, paved 

R.O.W. 120 feet, 5-lane, 
divided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

5.3 Zone Case 3047-BB Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Concepts  

Request for a zone change from Central Business District (CB-3) and Garden Office 

(GO) to Garden Office (GO) at: 

 4511 through 4531 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and west of 

Quaker Avenue, Vintage Office Park Addition, Tracts C through M.  

  

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ stated there were fourteen (14) notifications sent out with two (2) 

returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT TYLER GENTRY, Seventeen Services, LLC was available for questions but did not 

speak. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3047-BB, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE, and seconded by 

JAMES BELL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://ecode360.com/38876638












  3047-BB 

 

Subject property. View to the west. 

 

  

View to the south.    

View to the east. 

 

View to the north. 









 AI# 11072 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O00156, for Zone Case
2538-EE, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for South Plains Electric Cooperative, Inc., for a zone
change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-4) at 7714 and 7702 32nd Street,
located north of 32nd Street, between Alcove Avenue and Yuma Avenue, Alcove Park Addition, Tract
A, and on 10.78 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42, Tract C8.

Item Summary
On October 25, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of
8-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2538-EE 
Staff Report 2538-EE 
Documentation 2538-EE 













Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2538-EE 
City Council Meeting  October 25, 2022 

 
Applicant  AMD Engineering, LLC 
 
Property Owner   South Plains Electric Cooperative, Inc.  
 
Council District   6 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 27, 1984, Ordinance No. 8660: The subject property was annexed and zoned Transition 
District (T). 

• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538, Ordinance No. 8827: The subject property was rezoned from T to 
Single-Family District (R-1).  

• October 6, 2022, Zone Case 2538-EE: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a 
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-4) by a vote of 8-1-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 24 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The east 3.99 acres of the subject property was platted as Alcove Park Addition, Tract A on April 20th, 2011 and 
is developed with an electric utilities plant. The west 10.78 acres out of Block AK, Section 42 of the subject 
property, remains unplatted and vacant.   
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The property to the south is zoned Commercial District (C-4) and Light Manufacturing District (M-1) and is 
developed with a warehouse and office. The property to the west is zoned R-1 and remains vacant. The property 
to the north is zoned C-4 and R-1 and is developed with a homestead. The property to the east is zoned R-1 
Specific Use and is developed with residential homes.      
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 7714 and 7702 32nd Street and is located north of 32nd Street, between 
Alcove Avenue and Yuma Avenue. The applicant requests a zone change from R-1 to C-4. 
 
Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1)   
 
Requested zoning:  Commercial District (C-4) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed C-4 zoning is, “… to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state 
or federal highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be carefully considered.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Alcove Avenue, 32nd Street and Yuma Avenue. Alcove Avenue is 
designated as Principal Arterial and 32nd Street and Yuma Avenue are designated as Local Streets by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation network and are 
continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. Local Streets 
typically provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local 
business districts.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Low Density Residential” land uses. While the proposed zone 
change to C-4 is not consistent with this designation, it is appropriate in this location next to other commercial 
zonings that are already established. This property also fronts onto Alcove Avenue, which is a Principal Arterial, 
making this request in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and may need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-4 zoning district, as a portion of the property is currently unplatted. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and Supporting Documentation  

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla  Victor Escamilla 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107 806-775-3029
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-EE 

 

Allowable Uses:   Commercial District (C-4) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Alcove Avenue, 32nd Street 

and Yuma Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Alcove Avenue,  
Principal  Arterial 

(Modified),     
Partially Completed  

R.O.W. 25 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

32nd  Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W 27 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, not paved 

R.O.W 52 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Yuma Avenue,       
Local Street,             

Partially Completed  

R.O.W 56 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W 52 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 6 

 

5.5  Zone Case 2538-EE AMD Engineering, LLC for South Plains Electric Cooperative, Inc.  

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-

4) at:  

 7714 and 7702 32nd Street, located north of 32nd Street, between Alcove 

Avenue and Yuma Avenue, Alcove Park Addition, Tract A and on 10.78 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42, Tract C8.  

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were twenty-four (24) notifications sent out with zero (0) 

returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps, discussing the surrounding 

properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

APPLICANT TYLER APPLE, AMD Engineering, 6515 68th Street, said they plan to build a 

warehouse and office for storage. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

https://ecode360.com/38878120


Zone Case 2538-EE 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 2538-EE, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by 

JAMES BELL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

JAMES BELL cast the vote in opposition. 
 

 











2538-EE 

 

Subject property. View to the East. 

 

  

View to the South.   

View to the West. 

 

View to the North. 





 AI# 11071 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O00155, for Zone Case
2995-GG, a request of RSDGP, LLC for Endeavour Enterprises, for a zone change from Local Retail
District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4) at 7411 Milwaukee Avenue, located north of 76th Street and
east of Milwaukee Avenue, Bacon Crest, Tract E.

Item Summary
On October 25, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the Ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2995-GG 
Staff Report 2995-GG 
Documentation 2995-GG 







Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2995-GG 
City Council Meeting October 25, 2022 

Applicant RSDGP LLC. 

Property Owner  Endeavour Enterprises 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958, Ordinance No.2535: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 

Single Family District (R-1).
• April 23, 1959, Zone Case 0763, Ordinance No.2760: This property was rezoned from R-1 to General Retail 

district (C-3).
• January 22, 2004, Zone Case 2995, Ordinance No.2004-O0011: This property was rezoned from Transition

(T) and R-1 to R-1 Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks.
• March 4, 2010, Zone Case 2995-I, Ordinance No. 2010-O0018: This property was rezoned from R-1 Specific 

Use to Local retail District (C-2).
• October 6, 2022, Zone Case 2995-GG: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4) by a vote of 9-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 19
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property consists of 0.92 acres of land out of the northern portion of Bacon Crest Addition, Tract E, 
which was originally platted on April 23, 2019. This property is currently vacant.  

Adjacent Property Development  
This property is surrounded by mixed commercial uses zoned Commercial District (C-2) and Commercial District 
(C-4) to the north, south and west and residences zoned  Single Family District (R-1) to the east.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 7411 Milwaukee Avenue, north of 76th Street and east of Milwaukee 
Avenue. The applicant is requesting a zone change to Commercial District (C-4). 

Current zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2) 

Requested zoning: Commercial District (C-4) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-2 zoning “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the intersections of 
major thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
The intent of the proposed (C-4) zoning”… To provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or 
federal highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent 
residential areas should be carefully considered.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 76th Street, which is designated as a Local Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue 
which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes 
whose function is to serve high volume needs of local and regional traffic. Local Streets typically provide access 
to smaller, destination- oriented areas, such as neighborhood, subdivisions or local business districts. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Commercial Uses. The requested zone change is 
consistent with this designation and is appropriate in this location, adjacent to other commercial uses.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and the location is appropriate for C-4.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and should not require additional public improvements to support 
the intensity of this use.  
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and Supporting Documentation 
I. Notification Responses 

 
Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea    Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us     vescamilla@mylubbock.us  
  
 

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2995-GG 

 

Allowable Uses:   Commercial District (C-4) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Milwaukee Avenue.   

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

 

5.4  Zone Case 2995-GG RSDGP, LLC for Endeavour Enterprises  

Request for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4) 

at:  

 7411 Milwaukee Avenue, located north of 76th Street and east of Milwaukee 

Avenue, Bacon Crest, Tract E. 

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were nineteen (19) notifications sent out with one (1) 

returned in favor and one (1) in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, 

and maps discussing the surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT LEVI BRYAN, 521 North Texas Avenue, Odessa, Texas, said they intend to use the 

location for a drive-through coffee shop that will be 510 square feet without indoor seating, which 

requires C-4 zoning.  

  

JORDAN WHEATLEY asked for clarification on the property's existing conditions and if the zone 

change would affect the existing business on the property. 

  

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING KRISTEN SAGER said the property has one owner; the existing 

business already has a drive-through but has indoor seating, so the current business will not be affected 

by the change in zoning. 

 

Thoroughfare 
 

Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Milwaukee Avenue, 
Principal Arterial  

(Completed) 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

https://ecode360.com/38878120


Zone Case 2995-GG 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 2995-GG, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by TANNER 

NOBLE to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 
 













2995-GG

West View.

North View.

East View.

South View.





RC

7 BREW
510 SF

VAN

MASTER PLANPLAT

E:\
20

22
\2

02
2-

05
3\

Dw
g\

Dr
aft

ing
\P

re
lim

ina
ry\

Pr
eli

m
ina

ry 
Se

t\2
02

2-
05

3-
C2

.0 
M

as
te

r P
lan

.dw
g, 

8/
29

/2
02

2 4
:59

:30
 PM

, _
Au

to
CA

D 
PD

F (
Ge

ne
ra

l D
oc

um
en

tat
ion

).p
c3



~ Lubhos~ 
Project Information 

IJJhbor.k Planning Department 
PO Box 2CXX> / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION ~R ZONING CHANGE 

LocatlonorAddress: ]'{II M;lwwk .. A.re. 
Lots/Tracts:. ___ ________ ____ ___________ _ 

Survey&Abstract:. ___________________ -=-- -
Total Acreage of Request,, __ __ja.,,_q.,l,._ __ _ Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes O No 

Existing Land Use., _ _./{..._,,CA,,c;,,.._,_,:j-'------ ExistlngZ.oni11g:._6=-·"'a'----------

Requested ZOnlng:_8"------------------------
If property is not subdivided, wlll a preliminary plat be submitted? Yes No 0 

Representativc/Ace:nt Information (if different from owner) 

Arm Name:___$tf.(l _/.U._._,r.-1-- -,-- --------------- -
N.n 

,-,~~~~~Y<C A
O

p
3

p
10

1ica
0 

(Js(S~n,•,j,M , I~ 

-:fl. :/ \i;l,,c PrlntedName:_ ~\4 
owner Information :.. b C 

Firm N,me, f-\f\O\PtlVOUv rJ.ev 1:J '(·,<;es, 
Owner, T@r/:.e--f ft-e-ri,~:s, Se,-·, ~s Q11e., 
Address: 3'Cf-l-S- 7s.,. Otv/.(dJ,'-.u Is State~ 

ZIPCodc,7'f'f:2._3 Y:=~1~~ Ema~ 
PropertyOwner'sSlgnatur~-~---b'<--'--;.,,:;;."""''-~---- - ---
nate, 7,/Jq/2. 2.... Printed N,m6r::, 8 IA':l Is 6''15k1jP 

Preparer Information 

Preparer'sSignature: _____ _________ ______ _ __ _ 

Date: Printed Name: 

For City Use Only 

Zone Case No: _ _ ______ _ Plannlne and Zoning Commission Date: _____ _ 
Requestforlonlngchangefrom: ________ _ To :. __________ _ 

Lots,: _____ ____ ___ Blocks:. _____ _____ _ _ __ _ 

Addition ,, _____ _ ___ _ _______ __________ _ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the lonlng proces.s, plc11se contact the City of Lubbock Pl11nnlng Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at rj lypl,1nni11 r@nwh1hhock 11<. 







 AI# 11088 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning (District 1): Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the
applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at
3121 34th Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Frost Brewhouse, LLC.

Item Summary
Effective August 8, 2009, Ordinance 2009-O0060 Amended Section 14.01.007 (Section 18-11).
Alcoholic beverage-sales near church, school or hospital, in Chapter 14, Offenses-Miscellanous of City
of Lubbock Code of Ordinances related to businesses who obtain a permit from the Texas Alcoholic
Beverage Commission (TABC) for the sale of alcohol.

As part of the ordinance, the City Council adopted a standard which prohibits any business that is within
300 feet of any school or daycare, measured from property line to property line, from having a permit
issued by TABC. The City Council may consider a variance to the 300-foot requirement in the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Code.

The request for a variance is from Frost Brewhouse, LLC located at 3121 34th Street, which is within
300 feet of Mrs. O's at Tech, a daycare, located at 3101 34th Street.

A request for a new permit for on-premise alcohol sales at this location is pending, and requires a
separation variance request. The City Council has wide discretion whether to grant a variance. The
following may be considered by the City Council (as noted by the State of Texas statute providing for
the variance process):

1) The enforcement of the regulation in a particular instance is not in the best interest of the public;
2) The regulation constitutes waste or inefficient use of land or other resources;
3) The regulation creates an undue hardship on the applicant, does not serve its intended purpose or is not
effective or necessary;
4) The variance may be granted for any other reason, after consideration of the health, safety and welfare
of the public and the equity of the situation, if the governing body finds it to be in the best interest of the
community.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments



Attachments
Resolution Frost Brewhouse 
Map- Frost Brewhouse 
Packet - 3121 34th Street 





30
13

32
02

32
06

32
12

30
15

32
12

32
04

3007

31
10

32
16

31
01

32
11

32
13

31
13

31
15

31
17

32
20

32
18

30
08

30
19

30
50

31
42 313032
08

32
06

32
03

31
15

31
21

31
23

32
14

32
093215

32
17

32
13

32
15

30
09

30
05

30
07

32
06

30
16

30
10

30
13

30
25

32
03

31
06

32
17

31
09

32
02 3040

31
01

31
03

31
05

32
04

32
12

32
10

32
08

31
14

31
12

32
01

32
03

32
05

32
01

32
10

30
12

30
10

30
09

30
11

30
05

30
14

30
12

30
05

30
11

32
15

32
13

32
11

32
14

32
16

30
20

30
07

31
08

31
20

31
11

30
06

31
07

32
07

32
09

31
24

30
17

31
06

31
02

32
01

31
11

31
13

36
07

31
16

32
19

31
12

32
07

32
09

32
11

31
14

31
1632
04

31
08

31
10

30
11

30
133015

30
20

30
08

30
06

32
14

32
02

30
17

30
19

30
21

30
16

30
14

30
12

30
08

30
06

32
083218

31
02

31
04

32
15

31
19

31
21

32
19

32
21

32
10

31
18

32
05

32
07

32
17

32
19

32
18

32
16

32
08

32
06

30
08

30
06

30
18

30
16

31
18

32
04

32
02

30
15

3115

3101

3103

31
01

31
03

31
05

31
09

32
17

32
09

32
07

32
05

30
10

32
10

32
12 GA

RY
 AV

FL
IN

T A
V

35TH ST

36TH ST

34TH ST

33RD ST

MRS. O'S
AT TECH

METHODIST
CHURCH
FORREST

YOUNG
LIFE

METHODIST FORREST
HEIGHTS .LEGEND

Permit Requested
Churches
Day Cares
300-Ft Buffer Churches
300-Ft Buffer Day Cares
Parcels

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational 
purposes  and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does 
not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

0 100 200 30050

Feet 10/7/2022

Frost Brewhouse, 3121 34th Street - ABP Request

3121



If you have any questions pertaining to the City of Lubbock’s Zoning Certificate, please contact: 

City of Lubbock Planning Department  Phone: (806) 775 - 2108 E-mail: cityplanning@mylubbock.us

City of Lubbock City Secretary’s Office Phone: (806) 775 - 2061 E-mail: ocs@mylubbock.us

1 

Lubbock Planning Department 

PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 

ZONING CERTIFICATE 

    Business Information 

Local Contact:__________________________________ Local Contact Phone No.:_______________________ 

Name of Business:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________  State:_____ Zip:__________ 

Telephone:_____________________________  Email:______________________________________________ 

    On Premise Consumption: 

    Type of Business:   

Restaurant Nightclub/Bar/Lounge Dance Hall 
Sports Grill  Hotel/Arena/Civic Center Sexually Oriented Business 
Other (describe)___________________________________ 

Permit(s) Requested (Check all that apply):  

Mixed Beverage (MB)  Beverage Cartage (PE) 
Food & Beverage Cert. (FB) Private Club Beer & Wine (NB) 
Minibar Permit (MI) Retail Dealer’s On-Premise – late 

hours license (BL) 
Local Cartage Permit (E) – with BG 
only  

Food & Beverage Cert. (FB) 

Brewpub License (BP) 

Mixed Beverage Late Hours (L ) 
Wine and Beer Retailer’s (BG) 
Beer Retailer’s On-Premise (BE) 

Catering (CB) 

Private Carrier’s Permit (O) –  
Brewpubs (BP) with a BG only 

Mixed Beverage Restaurant with 
Food and Beverage (RM) 

Other (describe)___________________________________ 

Off Premise Consumption: 

Type of Business: 

Grocery/Convenience Store  Drug Store Package Store 
Other (describe)___________________________________ 

Permit(s) Requested (Check all that apply): 

Beer Retailer’s Off-Premise (BF) Package Store (P) Wine and Beer Retailer’s Off 
Premise (BQ) 

Wine Only Package Store (Q) Local Distributor (LP) Third-Party Cartage Permit (ET) 
Local Cartage Permit (E) Other (describe)____________________________________________ 

Property Owner Information 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________  State:_____ Zip:__________ 

    Business Owner Information 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________  State:_____ Zip:__________ 

    Applicant Information 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________  State:_____ Zip:__________ 

Interest in Business/Authority to Make Application:________________________________________________ 

Trevor Frost 806-535-2710

Frost Brewhouse, LLC

3121 34th St. Lubbock TX 79410

806-535-2710 frostbrewhouse@gmail.com

Brewpub

Capshaw Capital Inc.

4708 67th St. Lubbock TX 79414

Trevor S. Frost

2802 28th St. Lubbock TX 79410

Trevor S. Frost

2802 28th St. Lubbock TX 79410

Managing Member/Business Owner





If you have any questions pertaining to the City of Lubbock’s Zoning Certificate, please contact: 

City of Lubbock Planning Department  Phone: (806) 775 - 2108 E-mail: cityplanning@mylubbock.us

City of Lubbock City Secretary’s Office Phone: (806) 775 - 2061 E-mail: ocs@mylubbock.us

3 

Lubbock Planning Department 

PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 

ZONING CERTIFICATE 

Additional Permitting/Inspection Requirements 

   Are you applying for this Zoning Certificate in association with one of the following activities? 

New Construction Remodel/Alteration No Construction 

Change in Occupancy Classification No Previous Certificate of Occupancy Serving Food or Ice 

Smoking Allowed in Facility Tattoo or Body Piercing Facility  

If so, a Certificate of Occupancy may be required.  Please request a Zoning Use Verification For  from the 

Planning Department and    follow the steps outlined below: 

Step One – Obtain Zoning/Land Use approval from the Planning Department for the proposed business 

use. 

Step Two – Based on the above information if a valid Certificate of Occupancy is not found, no 

construction will take place or there is a change in occupancy classification, follow the procedures for an 

Investigative Certificate of Occupancy. A certificate of occupancy will be issued for new construction and 

remodel/alteration permits as part of the permit process at the completion of construction. 

Step Three – Investigative Certificate of Occupancy requirements. This process starts with Building 

Safety. You will need to speak to a Commercial Plan Examiner to see what documents are required. 

Step Four – When the permit for the Investigative Certificate of Occupancy has been paid for the 

applicant will pay for and set up an inspection from the Fire Marshal’s Office. 

Step Five – If the proposed business will serve food, ice, allow smoking or tattoo or body piercing, permits 

need to be obtained from Environmental Health. 

Step Six – Once inspections have been completed from Building Safety and the Fire Marshal’s Office 

application for the Investigative Certificate of Occupancy will be made to Building Safety. 

Building Safety Office: 1314 Avenue K Fire Marshal’s Office: 1601 Mac Davis Lane 
Lubbock, Texas 79457 Lubbock, Texas 79401 
(806) 775 – 2087 (806) 775 – 2646



 

FROST BREWHOUSE, LLC 
3121 34th St., Lubbock, TX 79410 | 806.535.2710 | frostbrewhouse@gmail.com 

October 6 ,  2022 

Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 
Lubbock, TX 79457 

RE: Variance Request   

 

Dear Lubbock Planning Department: 

As requested, in support of the request for a variance to operate a brewpub within 300 feet of an existing 

daycare facility, this letter includes the brewpub’s business name and address. Additionally, the permits 

requested from TABC  for the brewpub will be BG (Wine and Beer Retailer’s Permit) and BP (Brewpub License).   

Sincerely, 

Trevor Frost ,  Manager 
Frost  Brewhouse, LLC 

 





Page 1 of 5 Form L-ON ( /202 ) 

 
 

ON-PREMISE 
PREQUALIFICATION PACKET 

L-ON ( /202 )

Submit this packet to the proper governmental entities to obtain certification for the type of license/permit for 
which you are applying as required by Sections 11.37, 11.39, 11.46(b), 61.37, 61.38, 61.42 and Rule §33.13 
Contact your local TABC office to verify requirements of Sections 11.391 and 61.381 as you may be required to 
post a sign at your proposed location 60-days prior to the issuance of your license/permit. 
All statutory and rule references mentioned in this application refer to and can be found in the Texas Alcoholic Beverage 
Code or Rules located on our website.  www.tabc.texas.gov/laws/code_and_rules.asp

LOCATION INFORMATION

1. Application for:  Original  Add Late Hours Only License/Permit Number 

 Reinstatement  Reinstatement and Change of Trade Name  License/Permit Number 

 Change of Location  Change of Location and Trade Name  License/Permit Number 

2. Type of On-Premise License/Permit
BG Wine and Beer Retailer’s Permit LB Mixed Beverage Late Hours Permit 
BE Beer Retail Dealer’s On-Premise License MI Minibar Permit 
BL Retail Dealer’s On-Premise Late Hours License CB Caterer’s Permit
BP Brewpub License FB Food and Beverage Certificate 
V Wine & Beer Retailer’s Permit for Excursion Boats PE Beverage Cartage Permit 
MB Mixed Beverage Permit RM Mixed Beverage Restaurant Permit with FB 
O Private Carrier’s Permit –Brewpubs (BP) with a BG only E Local Cartage Permit - Wine/Beer retailers (BG) Only 

3. Indicate Primary Business at this Location
Restaurant Sporting Arena, Civic Center, Hotel  Bar 
Grocery/Market Sexually Oriented  Miscellaneous _________________

4. Trade Name of Location (Name of restaurant, bar, store, etc.)

5. Location Address

City County State Zip Code 

6. Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

7. Business Phone No. Alternate Phone No. E-mail Address

OWNER INFORMATION 
8. Type of Owner

 Individual  Corporation 
 Partnership  Limited Liability Company 

City/County/University 
Other    

 Limited Partnership  Joint Venture 
 Limited Liability Partnership Trust 

9. Owner of Business/Applicant (Name of Corporation, LLC, etc.)

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON 
The primary contact person should be a person who can answer questions TABC may have about the application. The contact phone 
and email are mandatory and must be active and updated regularly. If additional information is needed, it will be requested from this 
contact person. Delays in responding to requests may delay the processing and approval of your permit/license.

10. Contact Person: Relation to Business: 

Phone (mandatory): Email (mandatory): 

TABC DATESTAMP 

■

Frost Brewhouse, LLC

3121 34th St.

Lubbock Lubbock TX 79410

2802 28th St. Lubbock TX 79410

806-535-2710 frostbrwhouse@gmail.com

■

Frost Brewhouse, LLC

Trevor Frost Manager

806-535-2710 frostbrewhouse@gmail.com

■

■

■ Brewpub



Page 2 of 5 Form L-ON ( /202 ) 

11. Are you, the applicant, a veteran-owned business?  Yes  No 

12. Are you, the applicant, a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)?  Yes  No 

13. As indicated on the chart, enter the individuals that pertain to your business type:
(For additional space, use Form L-OIC)

Individual/Individual Owner Limited Liability Company/All Officers or Managers 

Partnership/All Partners Joint Venture/Venturers 

Limited Partnership/All General Partners Trust/Trustee(s) 

Corporation/All Officers City, County, University/Official 

Last Name First Name MI Title 

Last Name First Name MI Title 

Last Name First Name MI Title 

MEASUREMENT INFORMATION 
Section 109.31 et seq. 

14. Will your business be located within 300 feet of a church or public hospital?  Yes  No 

NOTE: For churches or public hospitals measure from front door to front door, along the property lines of the street fronts and in a 
direct line across intersections. 

15. Will your business be located within 300 feet of any private/public school, day care or child care facility?  Yes  No 

If “YES,” are the facilities located on different floors or stories of the building?  Yes  No 

NOTE: 

NOTE: 

NOTE: 

For private/public schools, day care centers and child care facilities, measure in a direct line from the nearest property line of 

the school, day care center or child care facility to the nearest property line of the place of business, and in a direct line 

across intersections. 

For multistory building: businesses may be within 300 feet of a day care center or child care facility as long as the facilities 

are located on different floors of the building. 

If located on or above the fifth story of a multistory building: measure in a direct line from the property line of the private/public 

school to property line of your place of business in a direct line across intersections vertically up the building at the property 

line to the base of the floor on which your business is located. 

16. Will your business be located within 1,000 feet of a private school? Yes  No 

17. Will your business be located within 1,000 feet of a public school? Yes  No 

60-DAY SIGN

18.
If required under Section 11.391 and 61.381, provide exact date the required sign was posted
at the location.

Exact Date (MM/DD/YYYY) 

ALL APPLICANTS 

19. IF YOUR LOCATION IS NOT WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS, CHECK HERE

I, the applicant, have confirmed I am not located in the city limits of any city, therefore, city certifications are not  required.

COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING CHECKLIST BEFORE SUBMITTING YOUR APPLICATION 
Per Sec. 102.01, a tied house is defined as any overlapping ownership between those engaged in the alcoholic beverage industry at different levels of 
the three-tier system. No person having an interest in a permit issued by TABC may secure or hold, directly or indirectly, an ownership interest in a 
business on a different level. 

All required forms have been completed.  Yes  No 

I have reviewed all forms to ensure they are complete.  Yes  No 

I have obtained all required local and state certifications (pages 3-5).  Yes  No 

All application packets have been notarized.  Yes  No 

Phone numbers and email address for contact person are up to date.  Yes  No 

All additional documentation as required by the application packets is attached.  Yes  No 

If required, out of state criminal history checks are attached (PHS #7).  Yes  No  N/A 

Certification of publication in local newspaper has been completed (page 5).  Yes  No  N/A 

A copy of the newspaper publication is attached (page 5).  Yes  No  N/A 

■

■

Frost Trevor S. Manager

Bounds Kayla B. Manager

■

■

■

■

■

04/13/2021



Page 3 of 5 Form L-ON ( /202 ) 

WARNING AND 
SIGNATURE 

IF APPLICANT IS SHOWN AS: WHO MUST SIGN: 
Proprietorship Individual Owner 

Partnership Partner 

Corporation Officer 

Limited Partnership General Partner 

Limited Liability Partnership General Partner 

Limited Liability Company Officer/Manager 

WARNING:  Section 101.69 of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code states: “…a person who knowingly makes a false statement or false 

representation in an application for a permit or license or in a statement, report, or other instrument to be filed with the commission and 
required to be sworn commits an offense punishable by imprisonment in the Texas Department of Criminal Justice for not less than 2 
nor more than 10 years.” 
I, UNDER PENALTY OF LAW, HEREBY SWEAR THAT I HAVE READ ALL THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THE APPLICATION AND ANY ATTACHMENTS AND 
THE INFORMATION IS TRUE AND CORRECT. I ALSO UNDERSTAND ANY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION IN THIS APPLICATION CAN RESULT IN MY 
APPLICATION BEING DENIED AND/OR CRIMINAL CHARGES FILED AGAINST ME. I ALSO AUTHORIZE THE TEXAS ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION TO 
USE ALL LEGAL MEANS TO VERIFY THE INFORMATION PROVIDED.

PRINT 

NAME 

SIGN 

HERE 

TITLE 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this       day of       , 20   , the person whose name is signed to 
the foregoing application personally appeared and, duly sworn by me, states under oath that he or she has read the said 
application and that all the facts therein set forth are true and correct. 
SIGN 
HERE 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

S E A L 

CERTIFICATE OF CITY SECRETARY FOR MB, & BE 
Section 11.37 & 61.37 

Not later than the 30th day after the date a prospective applicant for a license or permit requests certification, the city secretary or clerk shall certify 
whether the location or address given in the request is in a wet area and whether the sale of alcoholic beverages for which the license or permit is 

sought is prohibited by ordinance. 

I hereby certify on this  day of , 20 , that the location for which the 
license/permit is sought is inside the boundaries of this city or town, in a “wet” area for such license/permit, and not 
prohibited by charter or ordinance in reference to the sale of such alcoholic beverages. 

MB 

BG  

legal sale of beer/wine (17%) on-premise AFTER Sept. 1, 1999
legal sale of beer/wine (14%) on-premise BEFORE Sept. 1, 1999 

BE Beer Retail Dealer’s On-Premise License 

 

 I hereby refuse on this ______ day of _______________, 20____ to certify this location. 

SIGN 
HERE ,  TEXAS 

City Secretary/Clerk   City 

S E A L 



Page 4 of 5 Form L-ON ( /202 ) 

CERTIFICATE OF CITY SECRETARY FOR LATE HOURS LICENSE/PERMIT LB & BL 
Chapters 29 & 70 et seq. 

 

I hereby certify on this  day of , 20 , that one of the below is correct: 
 

  The governing body of this city has by ordinance authorized the sale of mixed beverages between midnight and 2:00 
A.M.; or
The governing body of this city has by ordinance authorized the sale of beer between midnight and

A.M.; or
  The population of the city or county where premises are located was 500,000 or more according to the 22nd Decennial 

Census of the United States as released by the Bureau of the Census on March 12, 2001; or 
  The population of the city or county where premises are located was 800,000 or more according to the last Federal 

Census (2010). 

OR 

  I hereby refuse on this ______ day of _______________, 20____ to certify this location. 

SIGN 

HERE ,  TEXAS 
City Secretary/Clerk  City 

S E A L 

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY CLERK FOR MB, BG & BE 
Section 11.37 & 61.37 

Not later than the 30th day after the date a prospective applicant for a license or permit requests certification, the county clerk shall certify whether the 
location or address given in the request is in a wet area and whether the sale of alcoholic beverages for which the license or permit is sought is 

prohibited by order.

I hereby certify on this  day of , 20 , that the location for which the 
license/permit is sought is in a “wet” area and is not prohibited by any valid order of the Commissioner’s 
Court.  

MB
RM  

BG   

Mixed Beverage Permit 
Mixed Beverage Restaurant Permit with Food and Beverage Certificate 

Wine and Beer Retailer’s Permit 

legal sale of beer/wine (17%) on-premise AFTER Sept. 1, 1999 
legal sale of beer/wine (14%) on-premise BEFORE Sept. 1, 1999 

BE Beer Retail Dealer’s On-Premise License 

OR 

 I hereby refuse on this ______ day of _______________, 20____ to certify this location. 

SIGN 
HERE  COUNTY 

County Clerk 

S E A L 



Page 5 of 5 Form L-ON ( /202 ) 

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY CLERK FOR LATE HOURS LICENSE/PERMIT LB & BL 
Chapters 29 & 70 et seq 

I hereby certify on this       day of       , 20   , that one of the below are correct: 
  The Commissioner’s Court of the county has by order authorized the sale of mixed beverages between midnight and 

2:00 A.M.; or 
  The Commissioner’s Court of the county has by order authorized the sale of beer between midnight and  

A.M.; or
  The population of the city or county where premises are located was 500,000 or more according to the 22nd Decennial 

Census of the United States as released by the Bureau of the Census on March 12, 2001; or 
  The population of the city or county where premises are located was 800,000 or more according to the last Federal 

Census (2010). 

OR 

  I hereby refuse on this ______ day of _______________, 20____ to certify this location. 

SIGN 

HERE  COUNTY 
County Clerk 

S E A L 

COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS CERTIFICATE 
Section 11.46 (b) & 61.42 (b) 

This is to certify on this       day of       , 20   , the applicant holds or has applied for 
and satisfies all legal requirements for the issuance of a Sales Tax Permit under the Limited Sales, Excise and Use Tax Act 
or the applicant as of this date is not required to hold a Sales Tax Permit

. 

Sales Tax Permit Number    Outlet Number 

Print Name of Comptroller Employee 

Print Title of Comptroller Employee   

SIGN 

HERE FIELD OFFICE 

S E A L 

PUBLISHER’S AFFIDAVIT FOR MB, LB, RM, BP, BG, BE, BL & V 
Section 11.39 and 61.38 

Name of newspaper 

ATTACH PRINTED COPY 

OF THE 

NOTICE HERE 

 to see example

 

City, County 

Dates notice published in daily/weekly 
newspaper (MM/DD/YYYY) 

Publisher or designee certifies attached notice was published in newspaper stated on dates shown. 

Signature of publisher or designee 

Sworn to and subscribed 
before me on this date (MM/DD/YYYY) 

Signature of Notary Public 

S E A L 



OWNERSHIP INFORMATION
Continued for Prequalification Packet

LOCATION INFORMATION

1.

2.

OWNER INFORMATION

3.

Frost Brewhouse, LLC

3121 34th St.

Lubbock Lubbock TX 79410

■

Frost Trevor S. Manager

Bounds Kayla B. Manager

Mirelez Nathaniel D. Member



 AI# 11096 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning (District 2): Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the
applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at
5101 Avenue Q, Suite A, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Tipsy's Sports Grill and Bar.

Item Summary
Effective August 8, 2009, Ordinance No. 2009-O0060 amended Section 14.01.007 (Section 18-11).
Alcoholic beverages-Sale near church, school or hospital, in Chapter 14, Offenses-Miscellaneous, of
City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, related to businesses who obtain a permit from the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) for the sale of alcohol.

As part of the ordinance, the City Council adopted a standard which prohibits any business that is within
300 feet of any school or daycare, measured from property line to property line, from having a permit
issued by TABC. The City Council may consider a variance to the 300-foot in the Texas Alcoholic
Beverage Code.

The request for a variance is from Tipsy's Sports Grill and Bar, located at 5001 Avenue Q, Suite A,
which is within 300 feet of a public school, Hodges Elementary.

A request for a new permit for on-premise alcohol sales at this location is now pending, and requires a
separation variance request. The City Council has wide discretion in considering whether to grant a
variance. The following may be considered by the City Council (as noted by the State of Texas statue
providing for the variance process):

1) The enforcement of the regulation in a particular instance is not in the best interest of the public;
2) The regulation constitutes waste or inefficient use of land or other resources;
3) The regulation creates an undue hardship on the applicant, does not serve its intended purpose or is not
effective or necessary;
4) The variance may be granted for any other reason, after consideration of the health, safety and welfare
of the public and the equity of the situation, if the governing body finds it to be in the best interest of the
community.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning 

Attachments



Attachments
Resolution Tipsy's Sports Grill 
Tipsy's Zoning certificate 
Tipsy's Applicant Letter 
Tipsy's Parking Plan 
TABC application 
LISD letter to the City of Lubbock_RE Alcohol Variance, Tipsy's 
Tipsy's map 































Lubbock rsD
Every child Every

October 25, 2022

Lubbock City Council
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, TX 79401

RE: November 1. 2022, C.ity Council Meeting

To whom it may concern

Lubbock Independent School District (LISD) is in receipt of a letter from the City of Lubbock
dated October 13,2022, regarding the City's granting of a potential variance for an on-premise
alcohol permit within 300 feet of a school. In that regard, LISD has been given notice of a request

from Tipsy's Sports Grill & Bar that is requesting an alcoholic beverage permit in conjunction
with an on-premises permit for their business to be located at 5101 AvenueQ South. The proposed

business is within 300 feet ofHodges Elementary School.

Please be advised that LISD is opposed to the granting of the variance as having on-premtses

alcohol sold within 300 feet olthe school is not in the best interest ofLISD students.

eerel v,

Dr o
pefl ntendent

Lubbock lnd ent School District

athy

Dr. Kathy Rollo - Superintendent
1628 1glh Street Lubbock, Texas 79401

E{ail: Kathy.Rollo@lubbocklSD.org Tel: 806.219.0071 Far: 806.766.1210
www.LubbocklSD.org

,h

*





 AI# 11102 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
11/01/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Municipal
Services Agreement, with Red Canyon Development, LLC, for the requested annexation of an area of
land generally described as 17.33 acres north of Woodrow Road and west of Quaker Avenue, into
Lubbock's corporate limits, along with the adjacent right-of-way.

Item Summary
Red Canyon Development, LLC, is the owner of the tract of land containing approximately 17.33 acres
north of Woodrow Road and west of Quaker Avenue, located in Section 6, Block AK, in
Lubbock County. The owner is requesting consideration of voluntary annexation of the land into the
City limits.

The first step in the voluntary annexation process is to establish a service plan to which both the City and
the property owner agree. The proposed annexation agreement sets forth the plan for services between
the City of Lubbock and Red Canyon Development, LLC. If the agreement is approved by the City
Council, staff will schedule a public hearing to consider annexation of the property.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Resolution - Red Canyon Development Annexation 
Municipal Services Agreement - Red Canyon Development Annexation 
Petition - Woodrow & Quaker 
Map - Woodrow & Quaker 









































 

 
This document was prepared under 22 TAC §138.95, does not reflect the results of an on the ground survey, and is not to be used 
to convey or establish interests in real property except those rights and interests implied or established by the creation or 
reconfiguration of the boundary of the political subdivision for which it was prepared. 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 17.33 acre tract of land located in Section 6, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, 

being further described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a point which bears N. 88°12'57" W. a distance of 105.08 feet and N. 01°47’03” E. a distance of 65.00 feet from 

the Southeast corner of Section 6, Block AK, being the most Southerly Southeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE N. 88°12'57" W., along a line 65 feet North of and parallel to the South line of said Section 6, a distance of 796.09 feet to 

a point for the Southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE N. 01°47'03" E., at 290.00 feet pass a point in the Southern boundary of Tract A, Cooper West High School, an addition 

to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded under County 

Clerk File Number (CCFN) 2021044896, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas (OPRLCT), said point also being the 

Southern boundary of the current Lubbock city limits, continuing along the Southern boundary of said Tract A and the Southern 

boundary of the current city limits, for a total distance of 838.17 feet to a point for the Northwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 88°38'26" E., continuing along the Southern boundary of said Tract A and the Southern boundary of said current city 

limits, at 500.01 feet pass a corner of said Tract A and the Southwest corner of Tract "A" Woodrow Substation, an addition to the 

City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded under CCFN 

2021006622, OPRLCT, continuing for a total distance of 799.99 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE S. 88°16'26" E., along the Southern boundary of said Tract "A", a distance of 100.03 feet to a point in the East line of 

said Section 6, said point being the Southeast corner of said Tract “A” and the Northeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 01°42'34" W., along the East line of said Section 6, a distance of 814.20 feet to a point for the most Easterly 

Southeast corner of this tract, whence the Southeast corner of said Section 6 bears S. 01°42’34” W. a distance of 95.00 feet; 

 

THENCE N. 88°12’57" W., along a line 95 feet North of and parallel to the South line of said Section 6, a distance of 75.00 feet to 

a point; 

 

THENCE S. 46°44'49" W. a distance of 42.40 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 
Contains: 17.33 acres 
Bearings relative to North, Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North-Central Zone, (2011, epoch 2010.0). 
 

June 6, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Robert A. Christopher 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5167 

Licensed State Land Surveyor 

State of Texas 

































































































Form 205
18741912v.1

1

Form 205—General Information
(Certificate of Formation—Limited Liability Company)

The attached form is designed to meet minimal statutory filing requirements pursuant to the relevant 
code provisions. This form and the information provided are not substitutes for the advice and services of an 
attorney and tax specialist.

Commentary

The limited liability company (hereinafter LLC) is neither a corporation nor a partnership; rather, it is a 
distinct type of entity.  An LLC is governed by title 3, chapter 101 of the Texas Business Organizations 
Code (BOC).  Title 1, chapter 3, subchapter A of the BOC governs the formation of an LLC and sets 
forth the provisions required or permitted to be contained in the certificate of formation.

The owners of an LLC are called “members.”  An LLC may have one or more members.  Members may 
be individuals, partnerships, corporations, and any other type of legal entity.

Taxes: LLCs are subject to a state franchise tax.  Contact the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, Tax 
Assistance Section, Austin, Texas, 78774-0100, (512) 463-4600 or (800) 252-1381 for franchise tax 
information.  For information relating to federal employer identification numbers, federal income tax 
filing requirements, tax publications, and forms call (800) 829-3676 or visit the Internal Revenue 
Service web site at www.irs.gov.

Instructions for Form

 Article 1—Entity Name and Type:  Provide a company name and organizational designation.  
Under section 5.053 of the BOC, if the name chosen is the same as, deceptively similar to, or similar 
to the name of any existing domestic or foreign filing entity, or any name reservation or registration 
filed with the secretary of state, the document cannot be filed.  The administrative rules adopted for 
determining entity name availability (Texas Administrative Code, title 1, part 4, chapter 79, 
subchapter C) may be viewed at www.sos.state.tx.us/tac/index.shtml.  If you wish the secretary of 
state to provide a preliminary determination on name availability, you may call (512) 463-5555, dial 
7-1-1 for relay services, or e-mail your name inquiry to corpinfo@sos.state.tx.us.  A final 
determination cannot be made until the document is received and processed by the secretary of state.  
Do not make financial expenditures or execute documents based on a preliminary clearance.  Also 
note that the preclearance of a name or the issuance of a certificate of formation under a name does 
not authorize the use of a name in violation of another person’s rights to the name.

 Article 2—Registered Agent and Registered Office:  The registered agent can be either (option A) 
a domestic entity or a foreign entity that is registered to do business in Texas or (option B) an 
individual resident of the state.  The limited liability company cannot act as its own registered agent; 
do not enter the limited liability company name as the name of the registered agent.

Consent:  Effective January 1, 2010, a person designated as the registered agent of an entity must 
have consented, either in a written or electronic form, to serve as the registered agent of the entity.  
Although consent is required, a copy of the person’s written or electronic consent need not be 
submitted with the certificate of formation.  The liabilities and penalties imposed by sections 4.007 
and 4.008 of the BOC apply with respect to a false statement in a filing instrument that names a 
person as the registered agent of an entity without that person’s consent. (BOC § 5.207)



Form 205
18741912v.1

2

Office Address Requirements:  The registered office address must be located at a street address 
where service of process may be personally served on the entity’s registered agent during normal 
business hours.  Although the registered office is not required to be the entity’s principal place of 
business, the registered office may not be solely a mailbox service or telephone answering service 
(BOC § 5.201).

 Article 3—Governing Authority:  The certificate of formation must state whether the LLC will or 
will not have managers.  If the LLC will have managers, select option A and provide the name and 
address of each initial manager in the space provided.  If the LLC will not have managers, select 
option B and provide the name and address of each initial member of the LLC in the space provided.  
A minimum of one person is required.

If the governing person is an individual, set forth the name of the individual in the format specified.  
Do not use prefixes (e.g., Mr., Mrs., Ms.).  Use the suffix box only for titles of lineage (e.g., Jr., Sr., 
III) and not for other suffixes or titles (e.g., M.D., Ph.D.).  If the governing person is an organization, 
set forth the legal name of the organization.  For each governing person, only one name should be 
entered.  Do not include both the name of an individual and the name of an organization.  An address 
is always required for each governing person.

Please note that a document on file with the secretary of state is a public record that is subject to public 
access and disclosure.  When providing address information for a manager or member, use a business or 
post office box address rather than a residence address if privacy concerns are an issue. 

 Article 4—Purpose:  An LLC may be formed for any lawful purpose or purposes not expressly 
prohibited under chapter 2 of title 1 or title 3 of the BOC.  This form provides for the creation of an 
LLC with a general purpose.  Please note that while the BOC allows a general purpose, other laws, 
including the Internal Revenue Code, may require that the certificate of formation include more 
specific purposes or language as a basis for granting a license or tax-exempt or tax-deductible status.  
The additional space provided in the “Supplemental Provisions/Information” section may be used to 
set forth a more specific purpose or purposes.

This form cannot be used to engage in a licensed activity when such license cannot be issued to the 
LLC.  To form a professional limited liability to provide a professional service use Form 206.

 Supplemental Provisions/Information:  Additional space has been provided for additional text to 
an article within this form or to provide for additional articles to contain optional provisions.

Duration:  Pursuant to section 3.003 of the BOC, a Texas LLC exists perpetually unless provided 
otherwise in the certificate of formation.  If formation of an LLC with a stated period of duration is 
desired, use the “Supplemental Provisions/Information” section of this form to provide for a limited 
duration.

 Organizer:  Only one organizer is required for the formation of an LLC.  An organizer may be any 
person having the capacity to contract for the person or for another; that is, a natural person 18 years 
of age or older, or a corporation or other legal entity.  There are no residency requirements for an 
organizer.

 Effectiveness of Filing:  A certificate of formation becomes effective when filed by the secretary of 
state (option A).  However, pursuant to sections 4.052 and 4.053 of the BOC the effectiveness of the 
instrument may be delayed to a date not more than ninety (90) days from the date the instrument is 



Form 205
18741912v.1

3

signed (option B).  The effectiveness of the instrument also may be delayed on the occurrence of a 
future event or fact, other than the passage of time (option C).  If option C is selected, you must state 
the manner in which the event or fact will cause the instrument to take effect and the date of the 90th 
day after the date the instrument is signed. In order for the certificate to take effect under option C, 
the entity must, within ninety (90) days of the filing of the certificate, file a statement with the 
secretary of state regarding the event or fact pursuant to section 4.055 of the BOC.

On the filing of a document with a delayed effective date or condition, the computer records of the 
secretary of state will be changed to show the filing of the document, the date of the filing, and the 
future date on which the document will be effective or evidence that the effectiveness was 
conditioned on the occurrence of a future event or fact.  In addition, at the time of such filing, the 
status of the entity will be shown as “in existence” on the records of the secretary of state. 

 Execution: The organizer must sign the certificate of formation, but it does not need to be notarized.  
However, before signing, please read the statements on this form carefully.  The designation or 
appointment of a person as registered agent by an organizer is an affirmation that the person named 
in the certificate of formation has consented to serve in that capacity.  (BOC § 5.2011, effective 
January 1, 2010) 

A person commits an offense under section 4.008 of the BOC if the person signs or directs the filing 
of a filing instrument the person knows is materially false with the intent that the instrument be 
delivered to the secretary of state for filing.  The offense is a Class A misdemeanor unless the 
person’s intent is to harm or defraud another, in which case the offense is a state jail felony.

 Payment and Delivery Instructions: The filing fee for a certificate of formation for an LLC is 
$300.  Fees may be paid by personal checks, money orders, LegalEase debit cards, or American 
Express, Discover, MasterCard, and Visa credit cards.  Checks or money orders must be payable 
through a U.S. bank or financial institution and made payable to the secretary of state.  Fees paid by 
credit card are subject to a statutorily authorized convenience fee of 2.7 percent of the total fees.

Submit the completed form in duplicate along with the filing fee.  The form may be mailed to P.O. 
Box 13697, Austin, Texas 78711-3697; faxed to (512) 463-5709; or delivered to the James Earl 
Rudder Office Building, 1019 Brazos, Austin, Texas 78701.  If a document is transmitted by fax, 
credit card information must accompany the transmission (Form 807).  On filing the document, the 
secretary of state will return the appropriate evidence of filing to the submitter together with a file- 
stamped copy of the document, if a duplicate copy was provided as instructed.

 FYI: An LLC is required to maintain a registered agent and a registered office address in Texas.  If 
the registered agent or registered office address changes, it is important to file a statement with the 
secretary of state to effect a change to the certificate of formation.  Failure to maintain a registered 
agent and registered office may result in the involuntary termination of the LLC.  

Revised 05/11



Form 205
18741912v.1

4

Form 205
(Revised 05/11) 

Submit in duplicate to:
Secretary of State
P.O. Box 13697
Austin, TX 78711-3697
512 463-5555
FAX: 512 463-5709
Filing Fee:  $300

Certificate of Formation
Limited Liability Company

This space reserved for office use.

Article 1 – Entity Name and Type

The filing entity being formed is a limited liability company.  The name of the entity is:

RED CANYON DEVELOPMENT, LLC
The name must contain the words “limited liability company,” “limited company,” or an abbreviation of one of these phrases.  

Article 2 – Registered Agent and Registered Office
(See instructions. Select and complete either A or B and complete C.)

  A.  The initial registered agent is an organization (cannot be entity named above) by the name of:

     
OR

  B.  The initial registered agent is an individual resident of the state whose name is set forth below:

Thomas K. Payne    
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix

C.  The business address of the registered agent and the registered office address is:

12402 Slide Road, Suite 201 Lubbock TX 79424
Street Address City State Zip Code

Article 3—Governing Authority
(Select and complete either A or B and provide the name and address of each governing person.)

  A.  The limited liability company will have managers. The name and address of each initial 
manager are set forth below.

  B.  The limited liability company will not have managers.  The company will be governed by its 
members, and the name and address of each initial member are set forth below.

GOVERNING PERSON 1
NAME (Enter the name of either an individual or an organization, but not both.)

IF INDIVIDUAL

Thomas K. Payne    
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix
OR
IF ORGANIZATION

     
Organization Name

ADDRESS

12402 Slide Road, Suite 201 Lubbock TX USA 79424
Street or Mailing Address City State Country Zip Code



Form 205
18741912v.1

5

GOVERNING PERSON 2
NAME (Enter the name of either an individual or an organization, but not both.)

IF INDIVIDUAL

            
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix
OR
IF ORGANIZATION

     
Organization Name

ADDRESS

                      
Street or Mailing Address City State Country Zip Code

GOVERNING PERSON 3
NAME (Enter the name of either an individual or an organization, but not both.)

IF INDIVIDUAL

                
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix
OR
IF ORGANIZATION

     
Organization Name

ADDRESS

                      
Street or Mailing Address City State Country Zip Code

Article 4 – Purpose

The purpose for which the company is formed is for the transaction of any and all lawful purposes for 
which a limited liability company may be organized under the Texas Business Organizations Code.

Supplemental Provisions/Information

Text Area: [The attached addendum, if any, is incorporated herein by reference.]
     



Form 205
18741912v.1

6

Organizer

The name and address of the organizer:

John Waesch
Name

2323 Ross Avenue, Suite 600 Dallas TX 75201
Street or Mailing Address City State Zip Code

Effectiveness of Filing (Select either A, B, or C.)

A.  This document becomes effective when the document is filed by the secretary of state.
B.  This document becomes effective at a later date, which is not more than ninety (90) days from
the date of signing.  The delayed effective date is:      
C.  This document takes effect upon the occurrence of the future event or fact, other than the 
passage of time.  The 90th day after the date of signing is:      
The following event or fact will cause the document to take effect in the manner described below:

     

Execution

The undersigned affirms that the person designated as registered agent has consented to the 
appointment.  The undersigned signs this document subject to the penalties imposed by law for the 
submission of a materially false or fraudulent instrument and certifies under penalty of perjury that the 
undersigned is authorized to execute the filing instrument.

Date: 7/20/2017

Signature of organizer

John Waesch
Printed or typed name of organizer















As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

CITY LIMITS (IN)

0 200 400 600 800 1000
Feet

±
Proposed Annexation Area (17.33 Ac) Located in

Section 6, Block AK, Lubbock County

CR
 20

00

Proposed Annexation Area
in AK-6 (17.33 Ac)

AK-6

CITY LIMITS (OUT)

CITY OF 
LUBBOCK

E-2
2

AK-3

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

COOPER WEST

HIGH SCHOOL

WOODROW RD

20-
128

WOODROW

SUBSTATION QU
AK

ER
 A

VE


	Agenda
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_9.20.2022 S EUB
	       ATT_10.11.2022
	5.01.__Budget Amendment 1
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 1
	5.02.__Budget Amendment #2
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 2
	5.03.__Amarillo Diamond, LLC - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Resolution - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Dedication Deed - Amarillo Diamond, LLC
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Section 6, Block E
	       ATT_Map - Section 6, Block E
	5.04.__Amendment No.1 to Contract 14564 with Cartegraph Systems, LLC. for professional technological services
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment_No.1_Contract_14564 (rescan(
	       ATT_Original Contract
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.05.__PD Headquarters Parkhill Contract 16927
	       ATT_Resolution Contract 16927
	       ATT_Contract 16927 Parkhill
	       ATT_92551 Budget Summary
	Sheet1

	5.06.__Location and Directional Airfield Lighted Signs at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution ADB Safegate
	       ATT_Purchase Order ADB Safegate
	5.07.__Purchase of two Elgin Eagle Street Sweepers for 6512 Street Cleaning.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order 31069794
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	5.08.__Parks, Recreation and Open Spaces Master Plan Adoption 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Park Board Minutes - 10_24_22
	5.09.__Texas Homeland Security Grant Award 
	       ATT_Resolution - eGrant Award
	       ATT_Award Notification 
	5.10.__Resolution
	       ATT_City  Council Resolution - Remaining Load Parameters
	       ATT_EUB Resolution - Remaining Load Parameters
	5.11.__ZC 3047-BB
	       ATT_Ordinance 3047-BB
	       ATT_Staff Report 3047-BB
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Central Business District 3 (CB-3) and Garden Office District (GO) Requested zoning: Garden Office District (GO)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts

	       ATT_Documentation 3047-BB
	ADP26DA.tmp
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: This property was annexed into city limits and zoned Transition (T)
	 August 8, 2005, Zone Case 3047, Ordinance No. 2005-O00092: Southwest portion was rezoned from T to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A)
	 August 8, 2005, Zone Case 3047, Ordinance No. 2005-O00092: Northeast portion was rezoned from T to Central Business District 3 (CB-3).
	 July 9, 2019, Zone Case 3381, Ordinance No. 2019-O0079: Southwest portion was rezoned from R-1A to Garden Office District (GO).
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Central Business District 3 (CB-3) and Garden Office (GO)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts

	ADP5F1.tmp
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: The northern subject properties were annexed into city limits and zoned Transition (T).
	 June 23, 2005, Ordinance No. 2005-O0067: The remaining southern subject properties were annexed into city limits and zoned T.
	 August 8, 2005, Zone Case 3047, Ordinance No. 2005-O00092: The southwest portion of the subject properties was rezoned from T to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A).
	 August 8, 2005, Zone Case 3047, Ordinance No. 2005-O00092: The northeast portion of the subject properties was rezoned from T to Central Business District, General (CB-3).
	 July 9, 2019, Zone Case 3381, Ordinance No. 2019-O0079: The southwest portion of the subject properties was rezoned from R-1A to Garden Office District (GO).
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Central Business District 3 (CB-3) and Garden Office (GO)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts


	5.12.__ZC 2538-EE
	       ATT_Ordinance 2538-EE
	       ATT_Staff Report 2538-EE
	       ATT_Documentation 2538-EE
	Case Information 2538-EE
	2538EE_1locator
	2538EE_2imag
	2538EE_3zoning
	2538EE_4flup
	Photo's 2538-EE
	Application.pdf

	6.01.__ZC 2995-GG
	       ATT_Ordinance 2995-GG
	       ATT_Staff Report 2995-GG
	       ATT_Documentation 2995-GG
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	6.02.__AV Frost Brewhouse
	       ATT_Resolution Frost Brewhouse
	       ATT_Map- Frost Brewhouse
	       ATT_Packet - 3121 34th Street
	6.03.__AV Tipy's Sports Grill and Bar
	       ATT_Resolution Tipsy's Sports Grill
	       ATT_Tipsy's Zoning certificate
	       ATT_Tipsy's Applicant Letter
	       ATT_Tipsy's Parking Plan
	       ATT_TABC application
	       ATT_LISD letter to the City of Lubbock_RE Alcohol Variance, Tipsy's
	       ATT_Tipsy's map
	6.04.__Annexation Agreement Woodrow and Quaker
	       ATT_Resolution - Red Canyon Development Annexation
	       ATT_Municipal Services Agreement - Red Canyon Development Annexation
	       ATT_Petition - Woodrow and Quaker
	Graphic_Annexation_RedFeatherCommercial
	MB_Annexation_RedFeatherCommercial_Signed
	TransmittalPackage_AK_6_20220408
	Red Canyon Company Agreement
	Red Canyon Development, LLC - Certificate of Formation (2)
	Red Canyon OrgMinutes 10052017 SIGNED

	       ATT_Map - Woodrow and Quaker


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}



